Public Document Pack

Simon Hobbs
Director of Legal and

@ DE R BYS H I R E Democratic Services

County Hall

County Council Matock

Derbyshire
DE4 3AG

Extension 38328
Direct Dial 01629 538328
Ask for lvan Walters

PUBLIC

To: Members of Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel

Wednesday, 15 January 2020
Dear Councillor,

Please attend a meeting of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel to
be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 23 January 2020 in The Council
Chamber, County Hall, Matlock DE4 3AG, the agenda for which is set out
below.

Simon Hobbs
Director of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

PART | - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence (if any)
2. Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations of interest (if any)

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 10)



5 (a)

10.

11.

To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Derbyshire Police
and Crime Panel held on 21 November 2020

Public Questions
To consider public questions (if any)

To consider a report of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
on Proposed Precept for 2020/21 (Pages 11 - 14)

Proposed Precept 2020/21 - (Additional Information) (Pages 15 - 54)
Proposed Timetable of Meetings 2020/21 (Pages 55 - 56)
Complaints Procedure (Pages 57 - 68)

Police and Crime Panel - Grant Funding (Pages 69 - 128)
Announcements from the PCC

Forthcoming Events

To hear an oral update on forthcoming events (if any)

Date of Next Meeting - 19 March 2020 at 10am



Agenda Iltem 3

PUBLIC Agenda Item 3

MINUTES of a meeting of the DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
held on 21 November 2019 at County Hall, Matlock

PRESENT
Councillor C Hart (in the Chair)

Councillors A Barrow (High Peak Borough Council), R Bright (Derbyshire
Dales District Council), V Clare (Erewash Borough Council), J Frudd (Erewash
Borough Council), J Mannion-Brunt (Chesterfield Borough Council), R Mee
(Erewash Borough Council), P Niblock (Chesterfield Borough Council), S
Peake (Bolsover District Council), P Pegg (Derby City Council), G Potter
(Derby City Council), M Potts (NE Derbyshire District Council), J Smale
(Derby City Council), and B Woods (Derbyshire County Council)

Derbyshire County Council officers also in attendance: Ivan Walters,
(Democratic Services, DCC) and L Wild (Legal Services, DCC).

Also in attendance: H Dhindsa, Police and Crime Commissioner, K Gillott,
Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner, A Dale, Chief Finance Officer, Office
of the Police and Crime Commissioner J Rhodes Orwin and D Robinson
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors F Atkinson, M
Bagshaw, A Wheelton and Mr S Handsley & V Newbury (Independent
Members),

25/19 MINUTES RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the
Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel held on 12 September 2019 be confirmed
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

26/19 MEMBER QUESTION & ANSWER SESSION Members were
provided with a written response to the Police and Crime Panel to the pre-
submitted questions raised by individual Panel members.

Councillor Potter:_Could all Derbyshire PCP panel members be supplied with
the most up to date expenditure and expense account figures for the PCC
office, together with the last 3 previous years accounts in time for the
November PCP meeting. ?

PCC Response: The figures were provided separately to Panel Members and
discussed at the meeting

Page 1



Councillor Potter: Our Towns and Cities are suffering from Anti- Social
Behaviour, in many cases caused by drug users and those undertaking
aggressive begging, as we approach the festive period and hopefully more
families will be visiting our Towns and Cities will our Policing Priorities reflect
the need for families and visitors to feel reassured by visible policing and
effective action against those who are intent on causing alarm and distress?.

PCC Response: Concern about anti-social behaviour in our city and other
major conurbations and its impact on those who live, work and shop in those
centres has been a concern for the Commissioner for some time, and isn'’t just
limited to the festive period. The causes of this behaviour are complex and not
simply a result of reductions in police visibility.

The Panel will recollect from previous meetings that the Commissioner
facilitated and chaired the Derby City Centre and Chesterfield Town Centre
Summits to address these very issues in those two localities. In addition, he
has hosted smaller “mini summits” in other communities.

Increasing police officer and staff numbers so as to increase visible policing
has been a priority for the Commissioner and has been funded by his decision
to increase the council tax to replace some of the police officers and staff lost
as a result of the Government’s austerity policy.

Officers from the Commissioners staff discussed policing over the Christmas
period with the Force at the end of the summer and the Commissioner has
already had a briefing on this subject from one Divisional Commander and
anticipates that the other Divisional Commander will cover the issue at their
next regular meeting.

Local Inspectors are currently preparing reports for their Divisional Command
Team on how they propose to police town/city centres during the Christmas
period. However, it should be remembered that all such plans are subject to
unexpected operational need and that keeping town centres safe and
welcoming places is not solely a policing issue.

The decision regarding when and what action to take against anyone
engaging in anti-social behaviour or criminal activity is a matter for the
individual police officer and not for the Commissioner. However a criminal
justice solution is not always the most effective option and, the Commissioner
has supported a number of measures to make dealing with this type of
behaviour more effective, including working with and financially supporting
partners to provide alternative solutions such as the Safe Space in Derby and
the Pathways Homelessness initiative in Chesterfield.

Councillor Mee: In September, the government announced a £10m budget
for equipping additional officers with Taser.

2
Page 2



A number of forces (e.g. Northamptonshire and Durham) now equip all
frontline response officers with Taser if they request it.

1. If this “new” money does actually materialise, is there any indication that
any of it will be offered to Derbyshire, and if so will it be accepted?

PCC Response: Whilst the Government may have announced this initiative
several months ago, not for the first time, a government announcement wasn'’t
accompanied by details of how the money is to be spent.

There are currently no indications regarding which Forces will receive any of
the National Taser funding, never mind how much they might receive. It is
known that the funding will be subject to a bidding process, although the
criteria used when making a bid are not known. However, subject to those
criteria it is expected that Derbyshire will submit a bid for additional funding to
support the Chief Constable’s current policy on the rollout of TASER.

2. What is the view of the Police and Crime Commissioner regarding the
much wider availability of this weapon for use by officers?
In this regard, | would welcome your comments not only on the
budgetary implications, but also on public perception. | would also ask if
your views are at all affected by the geographical issues which face a
force such as Derbyshire.

PCC Response: The decision surrounding the rollout of TASER, how many
officers carry a TASER and in what circumstances, is an operational matter for
the Chief Constable, not the PCC. However, the PCC has been supportive of
the Chief Constable in his decision to equip more officers with a TASER and
to train 100 additional police officers per year in its use over the next 3 years.

The Panel will recollect from its deliberations at the beginning of this year that
part of this year’s precept increase was to pay for the training of more police
officers in the use of TASER, including the recruitment of two dedicated police
officer TASER trainers.

Whilst supportive of the Chief Constable when operation need requires police
officers to carry a TASER, the PCC is aware of the wider “public perception”
Issue raised by this question and of how the public may have mixed views on
whether all police officers should routinely carry a TASER. It is a matter that
he has raised in appropriate arenas and is supportive of a wider, national,
public debate taking place to better understand the public’'s view. The
Commissioner would welcome the comments of Panel Members on this issue
of greater use of TASER.

Page 3



If the policy of the Government is to have more or all “front line” police officers
carry a TASER, patrticularly if a stage were reached when that level of TASER
deployment was not being requested by the Chief Constable, that is not
without substantial cost. The view of the Commissioner is that policing has
been underfunded for most of the last decade and that central government
should contribute more towards paying for policing rather than continuing to
rely on the local council tax payer to pick up the costs

RESOLVED to note the question and answer session

27/19 CHALLENGE TOPIC : IMPACT AND PREVALENCE OF
DOMESTIC ABUSE IN RURAL COMMUNITIES Hardyal Dhindsa provided
the Panel with a summary on the findings of a rural survey conducted by the
National Rural Crime Network (NRCN); progress made so far in terms of
commissioning of DA services taking into account rurality; and options for
future outreach and engagement including a summary of the Dragonfly project
in Dorset and local options with the Farming community.

The National survey was undertaken by a small private company called
‘The Buzzz' who were contracted to do the work. The Buzzz were an
independent market research company who are members of the MRS (Market
Research Society) and ESOMAR. They had experience of working with
victims of crime, Domestic and Sexual Abuse since 2014. A team of 3
researchers undertook the project.

The researchers found the following overarching national themes:

. Rural victims are half as likely to report their abuse to others.

. Rural victims’ abuse goes on significantly longer.

. Rural victims cannot readily access support services.

. Rural victims live in a society that defacto protects the
perpetrators.

. Rural victims are “ isolated, unsupported and unprotected in a

1

rural hell, which is purposefully ‘normalised’.

The researchers identified a number of national themes and
recommendations that were detailed in the PCCs report.

The survey findings in Derbyshire were based on a very small number
of respondents from Derbyshire , in total 35 for the whole, so caution must be
taken in relation to the findings, although general themes may be considered.

. Derbyshire was one of only two areas using ONS postcode

classifications to define rurality. This has resulted in their focus on
rurality to be reflective of the most isolated rural areas.

Page 4



Derbyshire are also commended for using data analysis to inform
commissioning strategy — in collaboration with the council
therefore we have a platform to continue to use performance data
to support the commissioning of future victim services.

In Derbyshire, the importance of localised service provision was
underlined throughout.

Derbyshire is the only area sampled other than Lincolnshire who
uses the ONS defined categorisation of rural and urban areas. It
is recommended that postcode analysis to use in the planning
and commissioning strategy to ensure a more equal distribution of
resources between urban and rural areas.

Specific initiatives need to be targeted at rural areas to
compensate for the under-reporting and as the implications of this
study start to show themselves within the terms of contracted
services.

From a referral perspective, the role of GP’s is underlined in the
picture for Derbyshire and could play a more prominent role in
terms of outreach.

In Derbyshire, it appears that the small numbers of rural victims
responding to the survey could all access support services within
30 minutes which may support the current distribution of smaller
localised partners.

In Derbyshire, there were few (4 in total) responses from victims
aged over 55. However, the national findings suggest this may be
an overlooked group across the UK.

In Derbyshire the researchers found concerns around
fragmentation of service.

The policing response for Derbyshire shows a mixed picture.
However, the sample size was small with the result that 3 in 5
victims responding to the survey had contacted the police from
urban areas compared to just 2 in 5 for rural areas and the more
remote rural areas the numbers contacting the police dropped
again. This reflects a national picture.

Interviews with victims in Derbyshire referenced a common factor
of a dominant male in the relationship more than any broader
societal influence.

In Derbyshire, the researchers found a significant fear amongst
victims that calling the police would lead to an almost automatic
involvement of Social Services.

While present in both rural and urban Derbyshire, the overriding
sense from our interviews with rural victims was the feeling of
embarrassment/shame they felt by admitting to the small world
they lived in that they were a victim.

Appropriate locations need to be found for people to attend
courses such as Freedom programme due to the reliance on
failing rural transport

Page 5



The researchers recommended the following for Derbyshire:

« Obtain a more comprehensive data set amongst victims of
Domestic Abuse in Derbyshire

« Conduct a reassessment of current strategic commissioning
for the rural areas

* Improve current service provision — distributed too thinly,
under resourced and under duress

» assess the police service’s ability to respond and the level of
training and gender balance of officers needed to attend to
Domestic Abuse incidents

The PCC outlined the response from his office:

The sample size of the NRCN survey meant that the survey must be
treated with with caution (only 35 people responded). Further testing of the
findings may be required to understand if these are really playing out in the
communities of Derbyshire as you could not be assured of the statistical
validity.

The current commissioning strategy for all victim services is founded on
an open and transparent procurement process based on service specifications
written according to need and following extensive review. Procurement of
medium risk Domestic Abuse services in the County between the OPCC and
local authority has been consolidated under a single consortia provision
covering the geographical requirements of the county. The high risk service in
the City and County is contracted to one single provided and an aligned
specification. Both specifications account for rural outreach, accommodation
and access for people from rural communities. There is also a county-wide
advice/helpline to increase access. Bespoke cases studies were used during
the tendering process to elicit responses to provide assurance around
effective engagement and targeted interventions for rural victims.

Work is developing with Rural Action Derbyshire who have strong and
trusted links with the rural and farming communities across Derbyshire.
Discussions are taking place to scope some key activities to further inform and
enhance our understanding of Domestic Abuse and design services
appropriate to the rural context. This may include some of the following:

* Developing networks with women in farming around the county
and holding informal focus groups.

» Undertaking surveys at farming and social events with women in
particular around the issue to gain a better understanding of the
Issues.

6
Page 6



+ Developing funding bids in partnership.

» Developing training products to roll out awareness raising training
next year to groups such as young farmers, women’s groups such
as WI and Mothers Union, and men’s groups where they exist

» Further developing rural Digital Hubs and champions to be able to
provide access to advice and a safe place where people can
access information and services.

» ldentifying positive male role models in rural communities who
can have these conversations, such as male chaplains and
farmer volunteers.

The OPCC would work with the Force to explore together how rural
communities are effectively policed including the PPU and the vulnerability
teams. It is not clear if the issues about visibility and response times relating to
DA are truly reflective.

The OPCC had commenced a scoping exercise on a volunteer outreach
programme modelled on a service provided in Dorset called Dragonfly. The
Dragonfly Project started in 2016 in Dorset to identify victims of domestic
violence and abuse (DVA) who are isolated within their own communities. This
was based on a recognition that some people are not able to access services,
or are not even aware that these services exist. The following describes the
service offer which is essentially about communities supporting communities.
It has resulted in both an increase in rural referrals and elderly referrals to the
commissioned services. They:

e Train Champions living and working in communities so they are
able to receive and respond to disclosures of DVA

e Work together to end misplaced stigma to enable people in our
communities to access support and help for themselves if they
are experiencing DVA

e Empowering communities to support and help those who are
being affected by DVA

e Educating communities to work together to raise awareness of
DVA

e Make support easily accessible in isolated areas

¢ |Increase early identification and intervention to prevent any long
term adverse effects of DVA

e Offer ongoing links for all Champions to a specialist DVA Worker

7
Page 7



Members were given the opportunity to ask questions or make
comments which were duly answered or noted.

RESOLVED to note the report
28/19 COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE Panel Members were asked to

consider for review the current Complaints Procedure adopted by Derbyshire’s
Police and Crime Panel (PCP).

The current Complaints Procedure was adopted by Derbyshire’s Police
and Crime Panel in April 2013. A copy of the Procedure was attached at
Appendix 1 to the report

The Panel has statutory responsibilities under the Elected Local
Policing bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012. These
include the Panel ensuring that it is kept informed about complaints and
conduct matters and their handling in respect of Derbyshire’s Police and
Crime Commissioner and his Deputy, together with responsibilities regarding
informal resolution in respect of particular complaints. There are further
requirements to notify and refer complaints to the Independent Police
Complaints Commission in certain circumstances.

In accordance with the regulations detailed above, the Panel is able to
delegate the receipt, initial handling and recording functions relating to
complaints to the Chief Executive of the Commissioner or the Monitoring
Officer of the host authority (the Director of Legal Services of Derbyshire
County Council). Under the current procedure, at paragraph 4.1, the Panel
has delegated authority for the initial handling of complaints together with
other aspects of the process to Derbyshire County Council’s Monitoring
Officer and Director of Legal Services under section 101(2) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

The Panel is also able to delegate the functions regarding informal
resolution to a sub-committee, a single member of the Panel, or to a person
who is not a member of the Panel. Under the current Procedure, the Panel
has also delegated this function to the Monitoring Officer and Director of Legal
Services of Derbyshire County Council under at paragraph 4.1.

The current Complaints Procedure has been in place since April 2013
and Members of the Panel have indicated a wish to review it.

LGA guidance from May 2015 “Good Practice for Police and Crime
Panels: Guidance Document” recommends that in reviewing the complaints
procedure, it is good practice for panels to consider:

e Clearly setting out responsibility for all types of complaint

8
Page 8



e Reviewing whether a triage system would be useful

e Making sure that complainants understand that recording a
complaint is not the same as upholding it

e Considering whether it is appropriate for the chair of the panel to
see all complaints

e Many complaints against police officers to the IPCC are partly
upheld through lack of recording although the substance later
fails. The produces unsatisfactory outcomes - consider
scrutinising the PCC’s performance in tackling this

e Having clear guidance for recording complaints

e Developing clear guidance for recording complaints

e Rather than referring to the IPCC general casework team;
referrals should be to a specialist link with experience of PCC
complaints

e Having a process to take back and conclude complaints when
received back from the IPCC

Therefore, it was felt that Members may consider it appropriate to
identify a working party to review the Complaints Procedure, taking into
account the guidance provided by the LGA.

Members were given the opportunity to ask questions or make
comments which were duly answered or noted and a general discussion took
place around the current complaints procedure.

29/19 POLICE AND CRIME PANEL — GRANT BUDGET The Chairman
mentioned that at the recent training event those present had asked for a
breakdown over the last three years of how the annual grant funding received
from central government to support the work of the Police and Crime Panel
had been used. She also felt that there was a need for some of this funding to
be utilised towards providing dedicated scrutiny officer time to support the
work of the Police and Crime Panel.

RESOLVED that a report be provided to a future meeting of the Police
and Crime Panel

30/19 ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE PCC Hardyal Dhindsa, the
Police and Crime Commissioner announced the following:-

The Derbyshire Spotlight Newsletter had recently been published and
PCP Members had received a copy. Further hard copies were available upon
request.

Two dedicated officers had now been assigned to coordinate the
Community Speedwatch Scheme and provide a support and training network

9
Page 9



for the many volunteers across the County in order to enhance the work of the
scheme.

It was noted that as part of the Forces phased recruitment plan 85
police officers would be recruited next year. There would be 50 recruited ‘in
house’ at the beginning of next subject to funding with a further 35 late in the
year.

Neighbourhood Watch Schemes across the County continued to
flourish and were coming up with positive ideas of what more could be done in
communities.

The deadline for local organisation to apply for Community Action
grants was 30 November so PCP memebrs were asked to spread the word
locally.

The indications from the Home Office were that due to the General
Election there may be a delay in the announcement of the budget until early
January which may compromise some of the key dates in terms of lead in time
on budget papers.

The PCC paid tribute to Annie Hall the former High Sherriff of
Derbyshire who tragically lost her life in the recent floods and highlighted that
as a key Business Leader and champion and supporter of the Police Force
her death was a great loss.

RESOLVED to note the announcements from the Police and Crime
Commissioner.

31/19 FUTURE MEETINGS The Chairman raised the issue of future
meeting venues, and the need to encourage greater public participation.
Following a discussion amongst members with regards to venues for future
meetings, Councillor Hart proposed that future meetings should be held
across the County rather than all being held at County Hall, this was duly
seconded by Councillor Potts.

RESOLVED (1) that following a vote it was carried that where possible
future meetings would be held at different venues across the county
commencing at 10am; and

(2) that the budget precept meeting scheduled for 23 January 2020
would remain at County Hall at 10am.

32/19 DATE OF NEXT MEETING RESOLVED to note that the next
meeting of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel would take place on
Thursday 23 January 2020 commencing at 10.00am at County Hall, Matlock.

10
Page 10



Agenda Item 5
PUBLIC AGENDA ITEM 5

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
23 JANUARY 2020
REPORT OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE

PROPOSED PRECEPT FOR 2020/21

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To notify the Police and Crime Panel of Derbyshire of the Police and Crime

Commissioner’s proposed approach to setting the 2020/21 precept.

2. BACKGROUND & CONTEXT

2.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner must, in line with the Police Reform &
Social Responsibility Act and Police & Crime Panels (Precepts & Chief
Constable Appointments) Regulations 2012 set a police budget and inform
the Police and Crime Panel of the proposed increase, if any, of the Council
Tax precept for policing.

2.2 Under ‘normal circumstances’ an announcement by the Policing Minister,
usually in December, sets out the Police Settlement Grant, from which
Derbyshire can calculate the amount of central Government funding it will
receive in the forthcoming year.

2.3 Due to the December General Election, this announcement was not made
and to date no such announcements have been forthcoming.

2.4 Included within the announcement is also information about the limit to which
a precept can be raised before triggering a local referendum — again no such
announcement has been forthcoming.

2.5 Historically the limit has been set at an increase below 2%, however in recent
years greater flexibility has been afforded to PCCs, and assumptions have
been made that PCCs will use this flexibility to raise the precept by the
maximum amount.

2.6 Panel members may recall last year the level was set at a maximum of
£24.00 for a Band D property.

2.7 Inthe absence of any announcements or concrete intelligence, police forces
have found themselves relying on statements made by the previous
administration regarding the funding of the uplift of 20,000 police officers
across the country as well as indicative statements made about the

Page 11



AGENDA ITEM 5

2.8

2.9

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

‘protection’ of police funding.

PCCs have also had to be reliant on any information that they have been
able to garner from a variety of informal sources in order to try and formulate
a balanced budget based on little more than ‘best guesses’. Clearly this is far
from a satisfactory situation.

Locally the finance officers from both the OPCC and the Force have been
pulling together a skeleton revenue budget based on a series of assumptions
to ensure that we are able to comply with our statutory duties to produce a
budget and inform the Police and Crime Panel of a proposed precept rate for
2020/21.

PROPOSED APPROACH

As an office, the OPCC is acutely aware that members of the Panel will want
to be able to look at the budget in order to understand the PCC'’s rationale
for any precept proposal.

We are keen to ensure that the information provided is as accurate as
possible to assist in the Panel’s considerations.

Our latest intelligence from the government is that we may receive
notification of the police settlement and precept limits towards the end of
week commencing 20" January 2020, but the announcement could slip
towards the end of the month.

With this in mind, and considering the need to present an initial precept
proposal to the Panel on, or before, 15t February the OPCC will distribute a
skeleton budget and precept proposal to Panel members by close of play on
Monday 20™ at the latest — any assumptions will be explained within the
paper.

Should any additional information, or indications, come from the Home
Office between 20" January and the Panel meeting, this will be shared as a
matter of urgency.

Panel members should be aware that the PCC wrote to the Chair of the
Panel to highlight this issue at the start of the year and the decision was
taken by the Panel Chair to remain with the current timetable for meetings.

Page 12



AGENDA ITEM 5

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

I The Police and Crime Panel of Derbyshire note the difficulties that no
information about the police settlement and/or the precept limits have

presented

i. That the Panel accept the proposed approach to the sharing of information to
inform their decision-making process

Contact details | Name: Hardyal Dhindsa
in the event External telephone number: 0300 122 6000

of enquiries Email address: pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

ATTACHMENTS

Extract from rules of procedure for Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel

APPENDIX A

EXTRACT FROM RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME
PANEL

14.7  Proposed precept

1471  The Police and Crime Commissioner will notify the Police and Crime Panel by 1%
February of the relevant financial year of the precept which the Commissioner is
proposing to issue for the financial year. The Panel must review the proposed

precept by 8" February of the relevant financial year and make a report including
recommendations.
1472  Having considered the precept, the Police and Crime Panel will either:
(@) support the precept withoutqualification or comment;
(b) support the precept and make recommendations;or
(c) veto the proposed precept (by the required majority of at least two thirds of

the persons who are members of the Panel at the time when the decision is
made).

Page 13


mailto:pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

AGENDA ITEM 5

1473

1474

1475

1476

14.7.7

If the Panel vetoes the proposed precept, the report to the Commissioner must
include a statement that the Panel has vetoed the proposed precept with reasons.
The Panel will require a response to the report and any such recommendations.

Where the Panel exercises the power of veto, the Police and Crime Commissioner
shall, by 15" February of the relevant financial year, notify the Police and Crime
Panel of the precept he/she now proposes to issue subject to the following:

(@ where the Panel report indicates that the Panel vetoes the proposed precept
because it is too high, the revised precept shall be lower than the proposed
precept;

(b) where the Panel report indicates that the Panel vetoes the proposed precept
because it is too low, the revised precept shall be higher than the proposed
precept.

On receiving a response containing notification of a revised precept under the
regulation the Panel shall, by 22" February of the relevant financial year:

(@) review the revised precept; and

(b) make a report (second report) to the Commissioner on the revised precept.

The Commissioner shall, by 1% March of the relevant financial year, have regard
to the second report, give the Panel a response and publish the response.

The Commissioner may then issue the revised precept for the financial year or
issue a different precept still subject to the requirements noted at 14.7.4

Page 14



Agenda Item 5(a)

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

23 JANUARY 2020
REPORT OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE

PROPOSED PRECEPT FOR 2020/21- Additional information

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

This report sets out the latest expected budget and precept proposals for the Office of

the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Constabulary.

There are a number of assumptions contained within the report based on the latest
projections and information available at the time of writing on 20" January 2020. This
has been necessary in the absence of the draft police settlement and associated
precept consultation guidelines.

This report provides information on: -

1. Police and Crime Commissioners (PCC’s) Revenue Budget for 2020/21.
2. Proposed Precept for 2020/21.

3. Medium Term Financial Forecast 2020/21 — 2023/24.

ATTACHMENTS
List of Annexes
A Revenue Budget Projections (Medium Term) 2020/21 — 2023/24
B Budget for the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 2020/21
C Budget for the Chief Constable 2020/21
D Anticipated Reserves 2020/21 — 2022/23
E Summary of potential precept options 2020/21
F Summary of projected movements in the 2020/21 budget

Page 15



The following section sets out the anticipated proposals for the budget, subject to
publication of the draft settlement for 2020/21.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To note the letter from the Chief Constable setting out his professional

recommendation to the PCC regarding the budget and precept proposal for
2020/21.

2. To note the information, analysis and assumptions made for the 2020/21 budget
and the Medium Term Financial Plan.

3. To consider, and approve, in line with Schedule 5 of the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011, and associated regulations, a precept rise of the

maximum allowable by the precept limit, but that does not exceed £10 (in total) for
a Band D property.

CONTACT FOR ENQUIRIES

Name: Andrew Dale
Tel: 0300 122 6000
Email pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

Page 16


mailto:sgbenquiries@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

Budget Preface from the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)

To say that my preface to this precept report is being written in unusual times is, to
coin an over used phrase, something of an understatement. We are usually able to
prepare detailed papers for the Panel that include certainties about the levels of
funding we will be getting from central Government through the Police Grant; we know
at what level the precept limit has been set, so | have an idea of the scale of the
flexibility | have available to me when considering any change; and most importantly |
will have had time, albeit over the holiday season, to give Derbyshire residents the
opportunity to have their say over any potential changes in precept levels for policing.

As | write this | have none of these.

The General Election in December meant that decisions about governmental spending
were put on the back burner, it also meant no statements have been made about the
capping arrangements for any potential precept rises. This in turn has made it very
difficult for me to go to the people of Derbyshire and explain the financial picture for
2020/21 and what | may need to ask in terms of the precept level for policing in the
coming year. To me this is unacceptable but something over which | have no control. |
have shared my concerns with the Chair of the Panel, and suggested that she might
consider moving the date of the meeting until we knew more, but her decision was to
retain this date so we find ourselves in uncharted waters, where all | can provide you
with is best guesses based on intelligence we have been able to gather from a variety

of sources.

| think it is fair to say that there is an acceptance that after a decade of austerity, and
resultant cuts in policing, there has been a significant effect on the Police Service of
England and Wales. The headline-grabbing announcement towards the end of the year
of 20,000 additional officers would seem to be a recognition of this. Whilst obviously
welcomed, let me be clear that this will not cancel out the effects of the past ten years,
though it will help shore up the service. It is important to recognise that the roll out of
these additional resources will take time, and will not be felt in full until the end of 2023.
We must also acknowledge that whilst any additional police officers are a welcome
boost to the service, the 20,000 does not address the estimated 19,000 police staff
roles that have been lost that allow these new officers to do the job of policing and
keeping people safe, rather than the administrative tasks that keep the engine running.
Last year | will admit | was, like most ofPayjeolldgagues, caught a little off guard when

the government announced the flexibility to raise the precept by a maximum of £24.
3



We had heard whispers that a greater flexibility than the usual 2% increase might be
on the cards, but this represented the first significant increase in over ten years. |
worked closely with the Chief Constable and ensured that he fully understood that if |
was going to ask the public of Derbyshire for an additional £24, | (and they) expected
to be able to see and feel the difference that this would make. The Chief agreed that
this was important and we set about an unprecedented recruitment campaign, to
seemingly impossible deadlines, to be able to deliver the uplift in officers and staff.
True to his word, the Chief Constable delivered these officers and staff and we are now
starting to feel the benefit of them within our communities. We have seen increased
visibility within neighbourhoods, we have seen work (supported by additional funding
from my office) to increase activity to address speeding through enforcement and
investment in Community Speedwatch initiatives, we have seen a focus on tackling the
issues of rural and wildlife crime through investment in the rural crime team, whilst also
responding to police identified risk and threat. Initial feedback | have had from people
out on the streets has been positive, but | am acutely aware that there is still more for

us to do.

It would be short-sighted to simply consider policing in isolation, as | have a wider
responsibility relating to partnership working and supporting victims of crime. Some
may suggest that austerity’s bite has been even more noticeable with some of our
partners, and | have certainly felt the impact of their cuts through a shift of demand
from services traditionally provided by partners onto the police. Examples of this would
include children’s services and provision for those with mental health needs. Whilst |
obviously want to play my part as an active partner, | simply cannot afford to plug all of

the gaps that are now appearing.

| have a difficult decision to make when it comes to this year’s precept. As | have
outlined above | am having to consider options with only half the picture. As you would
expect, | have spent a considerable amount of time talking to the Chief Constable to
gain his professional perspective and he has chosen to write an open letter to share
his views with the people of Derbyshire (a copy of which follows). My Chief Finance
Officer has worked with the Force finance team to model potential financial positions
and options for this and future years. | have gone to the public, both online and in
person, to ask for their views. The following report, however imperfect, is the best |
have been able to produce considering the missing pieces of the jigsaw and the lack of

the lid of the jigsaw box. Page 18



| must also acknowledge the elephant in the room in that there are the PCC elections
in May. But let me be clear...the decisions | will make, and the recommendations |
outline in this report are based on doing what | believe are the right things for the
people of Derbyshire, not the most politically expedient. When | took up office in 2016 |
took an oath which stated that | would, to the best of my ability, execute the duties of

my office to ensure that the police are able to cut crime and protect the public.

{

Hardyal Dhindsa
Police & Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
January 2020

Page 19



Tel: 101 Contact: Peter Goodman

Text Relay: 18001 101 Direct Tel: ]
www.derbyshire.police.uk Ext: .
Our ref: HQ/CC/PCPT1.8
Date: 13 January 2020

Hardyal Dhindsa

Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
Butterley Hall

Ripley

Derbyshire

DE5 3RS

Dear Commissioner
Precept Considerations for 2020/21

| am writing to you as | enter my fourth year as Chief Constable of Derbyshire Constabulary and to
share my professional view on why | believe you should increase the council tax precept by £10,
subject to the maximum allowed by the Government and regulations. During my time as Chief
Constable | believe that we have developed a good and professional working relationship, one
which | hope that you have found to be beneficial, allowing you to hold me to account for the delivery
of policing services within Derbyshire, supporting the ambitions of your Police and Crime Plan.

Firstly, | would like to take this opportunity to formally thank you on behalf of the Constabulary for
proposing last year's precept increase of £24, which was unanimously supported by the Police &
Crime Panel. This provided the opportunity for the Constabulary to continue to provide a high-
quality policing service to the people of Derbyshire. As a result of this precept growth, | am pleased
to say that | have been able to increase the number of Police Officers and Police Staff dedicated
to providing visible policing within our communities by 120 people, comprising of fifty-eight Police
Officers, fifteen Police Staff, eleven Neighbourhood Enquiry Officers, fourteen PCSOs and twenty-
two Detective Staff Investigators.

This year has also seen our first cohort of Police Now Officers join the Constabulary, specifically
recruited to support visible neighbourhood policing. Police Now is a two-year graduate programme,
training and developing people to become part of the next generation of Police Officers. This is a
new way to enter the police family, broadening the diversity, skills and experience of our workforce
and helping to make us truly representative of our communities.

In addition to all of the above, | have supported your commitment to ensure a visible and dedicated
difference to the way in which rural communities are policed through the creation of a County-wide
Rural Crime Team. Further work is also ongoing to train Safer Neighbourhood Officers so that they
are equipped to respond to the rural and wildlife issues in their local area. | also know that as part
of your #D383 initiative, one of the consistent topics that was raised as a concern by our
communities is the speeding of motor vehicles. | am very pleased to say that last year's precept
increase allowed me to provide an uplift of specialist officers dedicated to tackling speeding and
other crime on the roads of the north-west of the County and beyond. This is yielding rewards, with
the number of people killed or seriously injured on the roads of Derbyshire already reduced. We
have also seen investment in our public protection capability, which sees the most vulnerable
victims of crimes such as sexual abuse, child sexual exploitation and domestic
violence receive an enhanced service from the Constabulary.

The changes that | have made to the Constabulary are not limited to ensuring “boots
on the ground”. A priority of mine has been to ensure that the Constabulary is
completely fit to face the future through a comprehensive programme of workforce

Derbyshire Constabulary Headquarters, Butterley Hall, Ripley, Derbyshire DES 3RS
Incoming telephone calls and data ications may be i and recorded

Page 20



modernisation. We were one of the first forces to implement the National Enablers Programme,
and our ground-breaking work on Business Intelligence, Analytics, and 24-7 drone coverage proves
our commitment to innovate and “push the envelope” when it can be shown to deliver clear benefits
to the organisation. | have also ensured that cultural change is prioritised, empowering my
colleagues to do the right thing without fear of blame should it go wrong, guaranteeing that lessons
are learned throughout the entire organisation, and emphasising a just culture that is able to
demonstrate a real difference to the people of Derbyshire.

| know that the decision to propose and lobby for this increase in funding was a difficult one for you
to make, especially at a time when household budgets are being squeezed on many fronts. | hope
that | have shown that when the Constabulary is trusted by you with the public’'s money, it spends
it wisely, ensuring that the benefits to the community are realised quickly and intelligently.

As you know, the cost of policing does not remain static, and over recent years we have seen some
very real and significant financial challenges facing the Constabulary. Some of these challenges
are completely out of our control, such as the recent decision to increase Police Officer and Police
Staff salaries by 0.5% above the expected level of 2%, yielding a requirement to find an additional
£0.6m annually. In the absence of contrary information, we forecast that this 2.5% increase will
continue for several years to come. We have also seen a recent change to the way in which the
contribution to Police Officer pensions is calculated, yielding an additional, and significant, annual
pressure of £1.8m which is currently being met by a grant contributicn from the Home Office;
although there are no guarantees on that funding going forward.

We are also confronted with a constantly changing landscape regarding the way in which our
business is conducted in the digital environment. Whilst | recognise that this does present us with
many opportunities for long-term savings through business efficiencies, such as those expected
from our Analytics programme, there are significant upfront and ongoing maintenance costs
associated with technology development and licensing which are unavoidable. We do, of course,
have the option of reducing our expenditure on the future-proofing of our capabilities, but this is
ultimately ill-advised as it would denude our ability to tackle new and emerging crime types, as well
as reducing our capability to understand and address the ever-increasing and complex demands
placed upon our services.

As mentioned above, we are leading the way with the National Enablers Programme, recognising
at an early stage the potential it could bring. However, we should not forget that this programme
was an unavoidable outcome of the changes to Office 365 over which we had no control.
Increasingly, what were old infrastructure and on-premise storage capital costs in IT have now
become annual revenue costs based upon licences and cloud-based storage solutions which
create further pressure. We are now completely reliant on technology, and | know you share my
ambition that we should make the most of what this offers, to improve policing and the services we
offer; its changing nature does have a significant impact upon our finances however.

It should not be forgotten that the risk and threat that we face as a society is constantly changing.
Again, the ability to meet these challenges is not without cost, and tackling vulnerability requires
significant investment. For example, the recent work to address the scourge of modern slavery in
Derby and Latvia through Operation Doubrava necessitated an expensive multi-national, multi-
agency investigation which resulted in the safeguarding of twenty-eight vulnerable adults and the
prosecution of eleven perpetrators. As a result of Operation Doubrava, the Constabulary now has
a unit dedicated to tackling modern slavery and human trafficking; only a few years ago this would
have been seen as a luxury, rather than a necessary and vital tool in our arsenal against organised
criminality.

Whilst some of the above areas have been financed through the increases in precept over recent

years, | have ensured that our reserves have been used, as appropriate, to reduce the burden on
the public purse. However, we are now at a stage where our reserves have been largely depleted,

Page 21



reducing at the fastest rate of any other Force over the recent period, and aggravated by the recent
unforeseen and significant expenditure incurred whilst responding to the emergency at Toddbrook
Reservoir in Whaley Bridge (which the Force is unable to claim back as it fell below Bellwin limits).

Put bluntly, it is not a comfortable position in which we now find ourselves. If we assume a maximum
2% increase in the precept for the forthcoming year (the limit currently set by the Government),
then we face a real-terms cut and an end of year deficit of approximately £2.9m in 2020/21, with
insufficient available funding in reserves to balance the budget. Savings opportunities are still being
developed through the “Bridging the Funding Gap” programme and are by no means certain at the
moment. Any prudent financial planning would not anticipate “banking” any savings that are still in
the process of being delivered. Whilst our reserves would certainly be decimated in this scenario,
the impact would also be felt in the inability to continue with our various modernisation programmes,
with planned upgrades and maintenance to our estate being scaled back, delayed, or put on hold
indefinitely. It may very well be the case that in order to achieve the desired level of savings (thus
maintaining an appropriate but highly reduced level of reserves), resource vacancies will have to
be placed on-hold, with a very strong possibility of an overall reduction in numbers of Police Staff,
which may reluctantly include Investigators and other frontline Police Staff, throughout the County.

Whilst a 2% precept increase would present significant challenges if substantial savings cannot be
identified, a 0% increase in the precept amount has the potential to be catastrophic to policing in
the County, with an expected end of year deficit of approximately £3.7m in 2020/21. It is no
exaggeration to state that all operational activity would be detrimentally impacted upon, forcing the
Constabulary back into austerity measures, and leading to all of the good work conducted during
my time as Chief Constable to be completely undone. All modernisation programmes would cease,
redundancies would be inevitable, and we would have no choice but to scale back on our
involvement in wider partnership working as well as looking to delay any further investment in
collaborative opportunities with Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service; collaboration and partnership
working is not a zero-sum game with the Police having historically invested heavily to ensure its
success. Without doubt our current operating model would have to change, and we would be
confronted with some difficult decisions as to the type and level of service we give. We know other
forces have operated some very strong non-investigation and triage policies for certain crimes and
incidents. We have taken a very pragmatic threat and risk-based approach thus far, but it would be
choices such as this which we would face if presented with such a large financial gap.

The recently announced uplift of Police Officers by 20,000 is certainly welcome, and will yield
approximately 280 additional Officers over the next three years. However, the reality is that this will
not even return us to resource levels that were already in existence prior to the recent period of
austerity and overall reduced Government spending. In particular it would do nothing to address
the loss of nearly 300 Police Staff since 2010, whose work is vital in supporting activity of frontline
Police Officers. The funding for these Officers is ring-fenced, and recruitment will be closely
monitored by the Home Office to ensure the successful delivery of this target. Ultimately, this means
that whilst our overall Police Officer figures will increase regardless of the precept amount, we do
not have the flexibility to “cash-in" these resources for use elsewhere. In-fact, if we are left with no
alternative but to hold vacancies or to consider redundancies as discussed above, then we will
need to back-fill some or all of those deemed essential with Police Officers rather than significantly
undermine the service we offer to our communities. This will reduce the impact of the uplift
programme on our ability to deliver an enhanced frontline policing presence. Of note, this may very
well be prevented by the Government who want to see the uplift programme deliver visible policing
rather than backroom support. Let me be clear, we do not want to find ourselves in a situation
where Police Officers carry out office-based roles that would be better undertaken by Police Staff.

Clearly therefore, neither the 0% or 2% precept figures would be sufficient if our primary purpose
is to ensure the safety and security of the residents of Derbyshire. Our financial forecasting
suggests that the most sensible and pragmatic approach, an approach which balances the needs
of the Constabulary against the additional fiscal “ask” of council tax payers of the County, is to see

Page 22



a more significant increase, to the maximum allowed if the Government raise the limit on the precept
amount (which could be around £10) whilst still developing a savings programme that ensures we
are efficient and effective; the Force remains in the lowest quartile for spend per head of population
and for its available reserves. Whilst | understand that increasing the burden on council tax payers
has always been your last resort, and that your preference has always been for increased central
Government grant funding, it is my belief that this is the only realistic option left open to us, to
protect the service financially, whilst ensuring that your strategic priorities (as set out in your
Policing Plan) are addressed. This precept amount would allow for our current recruitment profile
to remain unchanged, and would demonstrate a commitment to the people of Derbyshire to
continue the level of investment in community policing seen over the past two years.

| believe that it is fair to say that up until recently, and as a result of austerity, the Constabulary has
been operating at a level at which we have only been able to deliver essential services. In the past
two years, and with your support, | have been able to invest in the areas of greatest risk and threat,
and together we have provided a specific uplift of resources to the area of neighbourhood policing.
My colleagues and | strive every day to ensure that these services are delivered to the best of our
collective ability, but the recent inspections by HMICFRS have suggested that an ongoing and
general erosion in the availability of resources throughout the Constabulary has impeded upon our
ability to truly deliver these services to a quality that the public of the County of Derbyshire would,
and should, expect.

Ultimately, and in order to meet our principle of keeping Derbyshire safer together with our partners,
we require investment. The combination of the uplift of Police Officers combined with a £10 precept
increase (if allowed by the Government) would put the Constabulary in a better place in which it is
fit to meet the challenges, both known and unknown, that lay ahead in 2020/21 and beyond.

With kindest regards,

 —

Peter Goodman QPM
Chief Constable

Page 23



1.1

1.2

10

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY — WHAT THE SETTLEMENT WILL PROBABLY
MEAN FOR DERBYSHIRE

In reading this report and the supporting documents, it is useful to keep in mind
the following key assumptions and proposals in the absence of the provisional
settlement announcement:

e There is a possibility that the precept flexibility could be up to £10 for a
Band D property, (a 4.62% increase or less than a £1 a month for a Band
D property). The initial limit set by the Government was equivalent to a
£4.31 increase in the Band D charge or 2%. £10 would provide an extra
£4m of additional income through council tax, bringing council tax funding
to £73m.

e Itis anticipated that there will be no increase in police grant or other
grants. However, we anticipate that additional funding of £7m will be
provided in 2020/21 to cover Derbyshire’s share of the extra 20,000
officers announced by the Government, rising to an assumed maximum
of £9.9m in 2022/23 but all of this remains uncertain until settlement is
published. This would be used to recruit the 283 officers (by 2022/23)
making up Derbyshire’s share of the uplift, including 85 in 2020/21.

e There are a number of other bid-based funding schemes that are being
introduced, most notably the national Taser Funding of £10m which the
Force can bid into on the basis of risk and threat. This has not been
included in any forecasts at this time but would allow us to sustain
funding in future years and increase the roll out.

e Projected overall funding of £191.296m based on a £10 increase. In
Derbyshire, this sees our potential funding increase by 6.3% between
2019/20 and 2020/21.

e £1m of funding has been provided from the PCC Reserves to cover

additional PCSO recruitment for 2 years.
Other more detailed assumptions are covered later in the report.

Panel members should also remain mindful that the limit is put on precept rises
before a referendum is required. It is estimated that the cost of such a
referendum in Derbyshire would be around £1m. This roughly equates to a 2%
rise in the precept. The PCC is very clear that he does not wish to exceed the
precept limit and trigger the need to hold a referendum.

Page 24



1.3

1.4

15

11

The Commissioner whilst welcoming additional specific funding regrets that
much of the burden is still having to be transferred again to the public of
Derbyshire. The Commissioner has consulted with the public of Derbyshire
concerning his proposal to increase the precept in 2020/21. The consultation is
still open although it looks as though the public are supportive of both the
Commissioner’s call for more funding from central government as well as paying
more council tax to protect policing services. The consultation is discussed in

more detail within section 7 of this report.

A budget settlement with a £10 increase in precept for a Band D property in
2020/21 means we are able to maintain our operational policing capabilities in
the short term, support the introduction of the extra officers and sustain the
investment made over the last two years with £4.892m of investment from
2019/20 maintained across the Force and PCC priorities. We can continue to
maintain and equip neighbourhood teams, rural crime teams, prevention,
response policing and our roads policing team and continue to progress our
essential investments in technology and analytics to support the force in dealing
with risks and threats to the communities of Derbyshire. We will be able to
continue to support the £3.209m investment from 2019/20 (of the £4.892m) into
these priority areas, made up of 58 officers and 62 police staff so our
communities will continue to see a visible investment in the areas that need
them. This follows on from our investment of 25 new officers during 2018/19 and
a further 25 other officers reallocated to areas of increased risk and threat.
These were primarily in Child Abuse and Exploitation, Domestic Abuse, Sexual
Violence, Modern Slavery and Cyber Crime. On the back of these two years of
investment, the Force has significant developments in investigation of rape
offences, 7 day a week public protection, 24 hour drone capability, increased
taser capability and enhanced investigation capacity and safeguarding support
to all children at high risk of all types of exploitation. It will also ensure we can
deliver the 283 extra officers by 2022/23 as our share of the 20,000 announced

nationally by the government.

Careful financial management over the last few years has also allowed us
to continue to invest in our people, Information Technology, in particular,
the National Enabling Programme (NEP) to improve information sharing
and productivity and the Estate. Investment in other priority areas included
sustaining our previous investmeFr)lftJlineZSéLQ/ZO, but also in year investment

to reinforce our information management team to meet new legislative



1.6

1.7

12

requirements, new communications approaches including Derbyshire Alert
and partnership contributions in making Derbyshire Safer together. These
priorities and others amount to an extra £0.917m during 2019/20, after the

precept was agreed.

There are also unavoidable costs we have to cover of £5.899m,
predominantly pay awards and pension contributions. Other changes in
the year amount to a reduction in the budget requirement of £0.252 which

are included in Annex A.

(Further detail on the cost-pressures and investments the Force will make are

included in section 5 of this report and also Annexes A & F).

In addition to maintaining the investments identified by the Force, the
Commissioner will invest:

e £172.0k to mainstream the contribution to the Mental Health Triage
Hub based in the Force Control Room (previously funded from
reserves).

e £100.0k to mainstream the Safe Space provision in Derby City Centre
(previously funded from reserves).

e £62.5k in services aimed at improving rural communities’ access to
domestic abuse support as well as broader IT provision.

e £35.0k to provide and promote online safety work in schools.

e £30.0k to continue the work of the East Midlands Chamber of
Commerce with the Business Crime Reduction Partnership
(previously funded from reserves).

e £30.0k in a service aimed at supporting female persistent offenders
break the cycle.

e £4.0k as a contribution to the road safety charity BRAKE to support
them in their work within Derbyshire.

The extra government funding for officers through the settlement and potential
for precept flexibility for 2020/21 only are by no means a permanent solution to
our funding challenges with significant uncertainty over future funding from the
Government. The underlying budget pressures remain due to the ring-fencing of
the funding. Indeed, this funding actually restricts the Forces ability to manage
and fund other pressures. The absence of a multiyear settlement also makes
planning and resourcing very diffa@€ B8 Force is developing its ‘bridging the



1.8

1.9

13

funding gap’ savings programme and is reviewing priorities, vacancies,
overtime, demand, detective staffing models and back office processes to
address the anticipated £1.296m deficit in 2020/21 that still remains, even after
a £10 increase in the precept alongside anticipated government funding.
Despite the potential for a £10 increase in Precept the Force and the PCC will
continue to lobby for extra funding as part of the next Comprehensive Spending
Review (CSR). Had we not received the flexibility on the precept in the last two
years and without flexibility this year, we would be looking at a deficit of nearly
£12m by the end of 2020/21. This is approximately equivalent to the salary
costs of 240 police officers. The table below shows the impact on council tax

income of a £4.31 or 2% increase or a £10 (4.62%) increase.

High level analysis of 2020/21 precept options

Precept Band D Precept Generates an
Increase 2020/21 Increase additional
(%) (£ per yr) (£ per yr) (£ per year)
1.99% 220.91 4.31 2,575,796
4.62% 226.60 10.00 4,325,970

Even with the proposed additional investment from Government, the Force is still
short of its previous establishment of 3,730 Officers and staff in April 2009 with a
projected establishment of 3,413.3 at March 2021. However, the need to identify
further savings remains, particularly with the likely expectation from government
that officer numbers will be maintained and vacancies minimised. This will be a

significant challenge to the Force in the future.

We have maintained a significant contribution to our capital programme for
2020/21 (E2.7m) in the revenue budget. This is because our reserves are
diminishing and we face the need to finance our future capital expenditure,
particularly on our police stations, by borrowing. The additional contribution from
the revenue budget will help to reduce the amount of borrowing required and will
be needed now we increasingly have to pay for much of our new IT equipment

and software through our revenue funding.
Page 27



1.10 Derbyshire continues to be a safe County and the investment last year into
priority areas has had an impact. The Force continues to meet the Home Office
tests to allow it to increase its precept. Reserves are around average for Forces
nationwide, Procurement savings targets set by the Home Office are being met
and the Force maintains a low cost per head of population when compared with
other Forces. With the proposed additional investment, particularly into our
communities, the Force has a great opportunity to continue to make Derbyshire

Safer.

2. THE NATIONAL PICTURE

WHAT'S HAPPENED IN THE PAST?

2.1  Since the Chancellor announced the results of the Coalition Government’s
Spending Review in 2010 Government support for local policing budgets was
reduced, in real-terms, by 34%. Even with annual increases in council tax

precept, total funding for local police was reduced by 21% up until 2018.

2.2  The 2015 Spending Review claimed overall police spending would be protected
in real terms between 2015/16 to 2019/20. The actual funding to police forces
was only protected to a flat cash level, which is not insulated from inflation or
changes in the national pay settlement. Even at this level, Police and Crime
Commissioners (PCCs) have been expected to increase their precept by the

maximum permissible level.

2.3  The 2019/20 Police Finance Settlement provided an additional £970m of
additional funding, with £813m for local policing. Precept flexibility was
increased to up to £24 and an additional £161m of other additional grant funding
was provided to cover other national priorities and pressures. There were
national efficiency targets set by the Home Office which were met to allow for
the precept flexibility.

WHAT'S HAPPENED THIS YEAR AND WHAT DO WE KNOW SO FAR?

2.4  As mentioned throughout the report, we are still waiting for the settlement
announcement for 2020/21 and have prepared this report based on the latest
assumptions and information available. Some assumptions were mentioned
earlier in respect of the overall precept.and grant funding positions. What is

p pE;lagg f§' g gp

clear, however, is that any additional grant funding is likely to be ring-fenced to

14



2.5

15

increasing officer numbers which does nothing to address the legacy issues
facing the force after having to pull back on investment in the Estate and
Information Technology and meet growing demand. These pressures remain in
the short and medium term. The following sections will set out more detail on
the expected pressures, potential policy changes and funding assumptions we
have made in developing this draft budget. Full detail will be provided in this

section once it is published and prior to formal approval of the precept.

WHAT DO WE THINK THE GOVERNMENT WILL EXPECT IN RETURN?
In 2019/20, the Home Affairs Select Committee (HASC) outlined the Policing
Minister’s 4 priority areas to “drive efficiency, productivity and effectiveness next

year”: -

1. Continued efficiency savings in 2019-20 through collective procurement and
shared services. There will be an expectation that every force contributes
substantially to procurement savings and the Home Office will be working
with the police to agree the “right force level objectives for 2019-20 and
2020-21".

2. Major progress expected to resolve challenges in investigative resource
identified by HMICFRS, including recruitment of more detectives to tackle
the shortfall.

3. Continue to improve productivity, including smarter use of data to deliver
£50m of productivity gains in 2019-20.

4. Maintain a SOC response that spans identification and management of local

threats as well as support for national priorities.

The Force performed in all these areas with over £0.590m in equivalent
annualised savings through collaborative procurement and shared services, with
particular work with the Fire and Rescue Service through shared posts and
procurement. This was highlighted in the latest Home Office returns. There was
also national recognition for the approach to smarter working through mobile
technology and the excellent approach to serious and organised crime. This
expectation remains and there will still be with an overall national efficiency
target to achieve across the country as part of the settlement conditions.

Page 29



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

16

WHAT ELSE DO WE THINK WILL IMPACT ON US?

Additional Pension Costs

The changes to the way in which police pensions are calculated means that the
police, as well as other “unfunded” schemes, saw sharp increases in costs. As
part of the 2019/20 settlement, these costs, nationally for the Police, were
estimated to be approximately £330m (£302m for police officers and a further

£28m for Metropolitan Police Service Civil Servants).

In 2019-20 the Treasury provided forces with an additional £142.5m grant in
addition to the £161m additional funding. The result is that in some forces the
combined grants cover the full pension costs, in others there is a relatively small
remaining figure. Actual costs will depend on local circumstance netted off with
the pension grant allocations. In Derbyshire there was a shortfall of £0.4m in
2019/20. We think this will grow to £2.6m in 2020/21 as grant will be frozen at
2019/20 levels.

Tax base assumptions
We also anticipate that the Home Office will update their tax base assumptions
to reflect the latest forecasts from the Office for Budget Responsibility of a 1.5%

increase in England.

Reallocations of funding

In 2019-20 the top-slices/reallocations totalled £1,029m. We are assuming the
same top slice in 2020/21 in the absence of any further information so any
further top slice from the Government will increase the projected deficit in the
budget.

In 2019/20, there was also an additional £90m to tackle Serious and Organised

Crime (SOC). The table below shows the allocations for 2019/20 in the absence
of information for 2020/21.

Page 30



2.11 We have assumed that the transformation fund will remain the same, in cash

2.12

2.13 We are assuming that the PCC will receive the following grants in 2020/21: -

Police Funding - National Reallocations 2019/20
£m
PFI (Private Finance Initiative(s)) 73
Police technology programmes 495
Arm’s length bodies 63
Top-ups to NCA and ROCUs 56
Strengthening the response to Organised Crime 90
Police transformation fund 175
Special Grant 73
Pre-charge bail 4
Total Reallocations and Adjustments 1,029

terms, at £175m although further funding could be provided to support the

creation of the National Commercial Organisation which is responsible for

overseeing the development of shared services and joint procurement across

Forces.

Council Tax Referendum Principles

The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government published the
draft council tax referendum principles. In 2020/21, it proposed that PCCs will be
allowed to increase band D bills by only 2%. However, we are now hoping that

this will be increased to £10 or 4.62% based on latest indications.

Grant Allocation

1 MHCLG - Ministry for Housing, Communities & Local Government

17

Derbyshire Reallocations 2019/20 | 2020/21 | Variation
£m £m £m
Home Office Police Grant 62.6 62.6 -
Ex DCLG?! Formula Funding 37.9 37.9 -
Sub-total 100.5 100.5 -
Legacy Council Tax Grants 8.7 8.7 -
Pension Support Grant 1.9 19 -
Officer Uplift Grant 7.0 7.0
Total General Grants 111.1 118.1 7.0
Page 31



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/764254/Draft_Council_Tax_Referendum_principles_report_2019_to_2020.pdf

2.14

2.15

2.16

3.1

3.2

18

In addition to these general grants the PCC normally receives funding from the

Ministry of Justice to fund victim and witness services (£1.212m in 2019/20).

WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD?

The Spending Review

The Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC) and the National
Police Chiefs Council (NPCC) continue to work closely with Home Office and
wider policing partners on any future spending review submissions. It is
anticipated that multiyear spending reviews will return in 2021/22 which, whilst
still likely to present funding challenges, this should allow policing to plan more

effectively.

Funding Formula

The police funding formula is widely considered to be unfit for purpose and
needs replacing. Indeed, the current formula has never been fully implemented.
Substantial work was undertaken in 2016/17 to bring forward new proposals but
this work was suspended in May 2017, following the snap general election. The
Minister is expected to announce that this work will recommence as part of

future spending reviews.

IS THE CONSTABULARY DEMONSTRATING PRODUCTIVITY &
EFFICIENCY AND DELIVERING VALUE FOR MONEY (VFM)

In order to meet the Minister’s conditions in relation to productivity and
efficiency, the APCC, NPCC and Home Office have created a National
Commercial Board through which to focus efforts to deliver real progress in
relation to procurement and shared services. Efficiency targets are being
developed as part of this and regular monthly returns are submitted to inform the
efficiency targets set by the Treasury to support any further investment or
precept flexibility.

Results of VFM Profiles
Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services
(HMICFRS) publish value for money dashboards, which provide comparative
data on a wide range of policing activities from 2011 up to the most recent data
release.

Page 32



3.3  Derbyshire is consistently below average net spend per head of population
against all forces (£170.47 vs. £184.92) and also slightly lower than Most Similar

Group and the same as the region, as shown in the graph below:

How has spending changed - long term

Reserve Position

3.4  Derbyshire’s reserves have been falling faster than the national average over
the past seven years. Reserves have been used appropriately to support
investment and ensure that any precept increases are justified alongside
savings plans and reserves. The level of reserves is now only around the
national average and reserves are now being used to meet certain cost
pressures rather than holding a contingency in the budget. This position isn’t
sustainable and the reserves projections later on in the report show the
challenges in funding future investment from reserves and identify the need to
develop the budget on a more sustainable footing through council tax increases

and savings plans, in the absence of government funding flexibility.

Page 33

19



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

20

Operational Funding and Investment
Reserve

25.000

20.000 N\
15.000 / \
10.000 /\/ \
5.000 N / \

WHAT ARE THE CHALLENGES FOR POLICING?

Chief Constables still have significant challenges as outlined in the letter to the
PCC in respect of the 2020/21 budget. A reduction in real terms funding of
police budgets of 21% (range 11% to 29%) up until 2018 came at a time when
the policing mission had been expanded and demand has grown.

The public and political expectation that policing should address crimes against
the most vulnerable, (domestic abuse, child sexual exploitation, modern slavery,
human trafficking, county lines and forced marriage) is resource intensive.
Victims require safeguarding. Investigations are often complex and partnership
case management is intense. The ability to create significant efficiencies is

limited in an area concerned with protecting very vulnerable people.

The threat from terrorism remains high and significant investment in counter
terrorism policing has been provided to National Counter Terrorism Policing.
Whilst the funding in some counter terrorism capabilities has grown it is worth
reflecting that the majority of the police responses to terrorist and indeed local
emergencies such as the Todbrook Dam in Whaley Bridge come from core
policing resources. Even uplifts in areas such as armed policing with additional

funds have required support from host force budgets.

The demand on policing remains high. This is reflected in additional demand

through reports and call volumes but it is also apparent in the evidence being
Page 34



4.5

4.6

provided to police. The digital footprint in most investigations requires more time

to process the work.

The force needs to respond to an increasingly digitally capable criminal requiring
new technology capabilities and organisation and serious and organised crime

is a threat, more widely regarded as a national security issue.

Finally, the stretch on the police workforce is extensive with a sharp focus now
on the level of community and neighbourhood resources and the need to

reinvest back into our communities.

5 WHAT ASSUMPTIONS HAVE WE MADE? WHAT COSTS DO WE NEED TO

5.1

5.2

COVER? WHAT INVESTMENT DO WE NEED TO MAKE?

Assumptions

The proposals developed for the draft budget ensure that resources remain
committed towards priority service areas, the delivery of the strategic objectives
contained in the Police and Crime Plan and meeting our Strategic Policing

Requirement.

In developing and refining the draft budget and the MTFS? the following
underlying assumptions have been made in the absence of the settlement
information but with regard to available information and discussions with other
forces:

e Pay inflation has been allowed for at 2.5% per annum in each of the four
years to reflect the increase in inflation and removal of the central
government capping on pay increases.

e A proposed increase in council tax precept of £10 per annum in 2020/21
(4.62%), reverting to 1.99% for subsequent years in line with assumed
referendum principles.

e Council tax billing base to increase by 1.6% in 2020/21 and by 1.5% in each
of the next three years.

e Police grants (Main Grant & Pensions Grant) have been assumed to remain
at the cash levels as notified in the provisional settlement for 2019/20

(£100.504m for Main Grant and £1.856m for Pensions Grant).
Page 35

2 MTFS — Medium Term Financial Strategy

21



e Maintenance of the Regional and Organised Crime Unit (ROCU) funding

e There is no assumed taser funding at the moment. 20% of the funding will
relate to 2020/21 and the remaining 80% in 2021/22.

e No change in the assumption that the Force will pick up Special Branch
costs in 2020/21.

e An assumption that there will be no flexibility in managing the number of
police officers with a requirement to fill all vacancies (£1.4m in 2020/21)

e No provision has been made at this stage for the introduction of the new
National Police Funding Formula due to the unknown impact this will have
on Derbyshire’s share of the national policing funds.

e The future investment in technology, whether direct capital purchase or
revenue service contracts, will need to be funded by revenue given the

diminishing reserves and the minimal level of annual capital grant.

Inflation

5.3  This additional cost does not relate to any increase in service but is required just
to maintain the existing base level of service and pay commitments. The
2020/21 budget assumes that all such increases can be contained within

existing estimates, i.e. they will be offset by procurement / other savings

Costs We Have to Cover

5.4  These are items within the budget which are committed to by means of previous
decisions taken, national agreements or statutory payments. The main
significant changes that have occurred in this section for 2020/21 include: -

Description £m

Pay Awards 3.008

Pay increments/ Specific Price Inflation 2.283

Pension Contributions 0.361

Other contributions to national IT Services 0.106

EMSOU? / Other regional collaboration 0.247
Page 36

3 EMSOU - East Midlands Serious & Organised Crime Unit
22



Total unavoidable costs 6.005

Other approved or anticipated changes 0.146

Priority Areas

These items of growth or sustained investment are required to improve
performance, meet the Commissioner’s and Constabulary’s priorities and the
growing demands on the Constabulary. The list of growth items is considerably
smaller than previous years, reflecting the financial restrictions. The main

significant areas are identified below:

Description £m

Maintaining and sustaining investment

Full year impact of 2019/20 Precept Changes 0.608

Police Officers national target establishment 1.365

Renewal of Pronto licences 0.255

Support for Regional Collaboration 0.215

Less: Police Officer turnover (2.366)
Other Budget Changes 0.077

Cost of sustaining investment 0.154

Description £m

Other areas of investment to support the front line

New accommodation — North Division 0.222
Business Change — increase in posts 0.251
Communication & Engagement — increase in posts 0.062
Information Management — increase in posts 0.034
Other new police staff posts 0.088
Support of Capital Programme 0.358
Cost of other investment 1.015

These investments and cost-pressures are also shown in both Annex A & Annex
F.
Page 37



The Workforce Strength
5.6 The table below provides a summary of the changes to the funded
establishment built into the 2020/21 revenue budget including the uplift from the

Governments proposed grant for extra Police Officers:

Workforce Modernisations (8) 10.2 2.2
Business Change Department — approved increases 8.0 8.0
Comms & Engagement — approved increases 2.0 2.0
Criminal Justice — temporary posts funded by PCC / 46 46
MHCLG

Increase in Regionally-funded posts 5.2 5.2
Increase in CREST / DBS-funded posts 5.0 5.0
Other Police Staff changes 1.0 6.3 7.3
Police Officers national uplift 85 85

In addition, the 20 extra PCSO’s will be recruited in 2020/21 on top of the

numbers above.

o

WHAT IS THE EXPECTED OUTCOME? - 2020/21 DRAFT BUDGET
SUMMARY

6.1 The tables below provide a summary of the 2020/21 draft revenue budget
showing a high-level split of the overall budget between those elements that the
PCC is directly responsible for and those under the direction and control of the
Chief Constable to manage and operate.

6.2 The proposed draft budget for 2020/21 for the Office of the Police and Crime

Commissioner is summarised in the table below:
Page 38

24



Commissioner’s Office 1.220 1.277
Crime Prevention Fund 0.275 0.275
Community Safety Fund 1.366 1.732
Victim and Witness Services 1.133 1.614

Revenue Contributions to Capital 3.092 2.692
Debt Charges 0.701 0.731
Interest Receipts (0.160) (0.110)

Contribution from Reserves - (0.146)
Contribution to Reserves 0.024 0.028
Grant from the Ministry of Justice (estimate) (1.212) (1.212)
Contributions from partners - (0.450)

6.3 The proposed draft budget for the Chief Constable is set out in the table below:

25

Page 39

Derbyshire Constabulary 162.768 174.106
East Midlands Collaboration 11.310 11.596
BCU Fund 0.318 0.318
Partnerships 0.576 0.579
Contribution to National Policing 0.215 0.163
owiod | ] e
Contributions from Reserves (0.610) (0.748)




6.4  The budget for the share of specialist policing within Derbyshire that is being
delivered collaboratively with other police forces within the East Midlands is

summarised in the table below: -

Proposed Draft
East Midlands Collaboration Budget Budget
2019/20 2020/21
£m £m
EMSOU Serious and Organised Crime, incl. TSU 4.886 4.940
Major Crime 0.188 0.189
Forensics 1.875 1.969
HR Service Centre 0.745 0.802
Learning and Development / Occupational Health 1.039 1.074
Legal 0.357 0.397
Contribution to Regional Teams 0.302 0.307
i i i i A 1.911 1.909
Major Crime (budget retained within Derbyshire’s base)
Crimestoppers Regional Manager 0.007 0.009
Total Collaboration 11.310 11.596

Council Tax base

6.5 The tax base is calculated by the billing authorities by converting all properties
to band D equivalents and making assumptions about the levels of discounts to
be offered and the amount of tax to be collected. Billing authorities are not
required to finalise their tax bases until the end of January. Based on current
information the total tax base for the PCC for 2020/21 is expected to be
321,088.28 and is broken down by authority in Annex E.

Band D Council Tax

6.6  Assuming the Government allow for an increase of £10, the recommended Band
D council tax proposed for 2020/21 is £226.60, an increase of 4.62% on the
comparable figure for 2019/20.

Page 40

26



6.7

27

Precept Increase
£10

Net Revenue Budget £192.592m
Budget Increase (%) 6.2%
Proposed Council Tax Requirement £72.759m
Police Council Tax (Band D) £226.60
Police Council Tax Increase (£) £10.00
Police Council Tax Increase (%) 4.62%
Proposed Contribution from reserves £1.296m

MEDIUM-TERM PROJECTIONS 2020/24

The impact of the budget proposals for 2020/21 and key assumptions for costs and
income streams over the next 4 years is summarised in the table below. All
government funding, including all special grants, are shown as external funding,
illustrating the full cost and funding of the Derbyshire PCC and Chief Constable.
This shows the deficit of £1.296m for 2020/21, rising to £13.362m in 2022/23, based
on the current assumptions. These projections are set out in more detail at Annex A.
Given the uncertainties surrounding future funding for the police service the
projected deficits can only be highly provisional at this stage and represent the likely
to worse case scenarios, assuming no police grant increase of further funding for
officers and restrictions through ring fenced grant. It also assumes a 2% precept

increase in future years and shows the extent of the challenge that remains.

Medium-Term Forecasts 2019/23 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
£m £m £m £m

Previous Year’s Gross Expenditure 181.016 192.592 202.024 210.090

!nflation (including pay awards and 5.899 6.019 6.149 6.300

increments)

Other spending pressures/reductions 5.358 3.420 0.917 (1.919)

New Business Cases 0.319 (0.007) 1.000 1.000

Net Revenue Budget 192.592 202.024 210.090 215.471

Projected Funding (191.296) (195.281) (199.357) (202.110)

Annual Budget Base

(Surplus)/Deficit 1.296 6.743 10.733 13.362

Contribution (to) / from

Reserves/Bridging the Funding Gap (1.296) 0 0 0

Programme

Remaining (Surplus)/Deficit 0 6.743 10.733 13.362
Page 41



6.8

6.9

We continue to model a range of scenarios for the future and the Statement
from the Chief Finance Officer for the Chief Constable highlights some of the
risks that need to be managed.

SAVINGS STRATEGY

The Force has developed its ‘Bridging the Funding Gap’ Programme which will
be monitored through the Finance Futures Board. The following diagram sets
out the themes and regular updates will be included in the budget monitoring
reports. Much of the focus will be on managing the workforce growth and
development, linking closely to the Workforce Futures Board to achieve the
savings targets. The Force will work with the figures outlined above in
determining the savings targets.

Good Budget Management & .
€ & Developing our processes &

Housekeeping Systems Resourcing to Risk & Threat

Overtime .& Carry forwards

6.10

28

It is vital that Derbyshire Police continue to explore opportunities to deliver
savings to fund future investment as Reserves will only cover any deficit until

2021/22 based on the current projections, without further savings or funding.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

This section will be updated once the consultation is updated.

Page 42



8.2

8.3

8.4

29

RESERVES AND BALANCES

There is continuing focus on the amount of reserves held by the police. A report
was presented to the Policing Minister in October 2018 which showed that total

revenue reserves at 315t March 2018 amounted to £1.40bn; a reduction of 14%

on comparable figures twelve months ago. The last available forecasts indicate

that revenue reserves will fall by a further 47% between now and March 2021 to

a figure of £747m.

Capital grants and reserves have fallen from £534m in March 2017 to £168m by
March 2018 and expected to fall still further by March 2021.

Reserves Position for Derbyshire
The budget plans accommodate all the known immediate financial risks facing
Derbyshire Police. Nevertheless, risks continue to remain over future finance

settlements, inflation and the impact of future pay awards, but also the:

e Contributions to Regional Organised Crime Units (ROCU) and East Midlands
Serious and Organised Crime Unit.

e Future funding to support recruitment and the associated costs

e National Police Information and Technology charges

e Employer Pension rates.

e Changes to the funding model for the National Police Air Service (NPAS).

e Forensics (investment in digital technology and supplier pressure).

e Introduction of the Emergency Services Network (ESN).

e Impact of Brexit.

Equally, major and unpredictable new policing operations can also impact
heavily on the budget. As it stands, reserves are sufficient to provide a cushion

against short term risks. The table shows the projected reserves up to 2024

Page 43



Balances Estimated Estimated | Estimated | Estimated
at 31/03/19 Balances Balances Balances Balances
at 31/03/20 | at 31/03/21 | at 31/03/22 | at 31/03/23
£m £m £m £m £m

GENERAL RESERVES 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500
EARMARKED RESERVES
Useable:-
Operational Funding and Investment
Reserve 4.276 2.153 0.357 0.000 0.000
Carry-forwards 1.647 1.116 0.982 0.982 0.982
PCC Grants & Commissioning 2.147 1.031 0.885 0.885 0.885
Sub-Total 8.071 4.300 2.224 1.867 1.867
Non-useable:-
PFI - llkeston 1.063 0.999 0.925 0.842 0.749
PFI - Derby 2.782 2.449 2.078 1.672 1.228
Insurance 0.070 0.076 0.081 0.081 0.081
Sub-Total 3.916 3.524 3.084 2.595 2.058
TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES 11.986 7.824 5.308 4.462 3.925
TOTAL RESERVES 17.486 13.324 10.808 9.962 9.425

Further detail on the level of reserves is set out in Annex D and the Reserves

Strategy will show the modelling of the impact on reserves of risks and key

8.5

assumptions.
9. IS OUR BORROWING AFFORDABLE?
9.1

30

Whilst the Prudential Code relates to new capital controls, it does impact on the

revenue budget. Any agree long term borrowing meeting all the Prudential Code

guidelines will have on-going revenue implications over a long period. Separate

reports deal with the Capital Programme and also the Prudential Indicators for

the Constabulary will be prepared once the settlement has been published.

Borrowing assumptions for currently approved capital schemes are included in

this report.

Page 44




10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

31

ASSURANCE STATEMENT FROM THE S151 OFFICERS’
CONSIDERATIONS

When setting the Budget and Capital Programme for the forthcoming year the
Police & Crime Commissioner must be satisfied that adequate consideration has

been given to the following: -

e Government policy on police spending, as applied to the Police & Crime
Commissioner.

e The CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.

e The impact on the Council Tax and the threat or risk of exceeding the
excessiveness principle (previously capping).

e Whether the proposals represent a balanced budget for the year.

e The robustness of estimates and the size and adequacy of general and
specific earmarked reserves.

e The medium-term implications of the Budget and Capital Programme
(MTFS).

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Commissioner’s
Chief Financial Officer to provide the Commissioner with assurance on the
robustness of estimates made for the purposes of the budget calculations and

the adequacy of reserves.

The Act requires that the Commissioner has regard to the report of the Chief
Finance Officer in making their budget decision. Where this advice is not
accepted, this needs to be formally recorded in the minutes of an appropriate
meeting. This statement will be finalised once the settlement is announced but

the draft statements based on the latest assumptions are included below.

ASSURANCE OF THE CHIEF CONSTABLE'S CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

As the Chief Constable’s Chief Financial Officer, | can provide the following

assurances: -

e The main assumptions and estimates, (in the absence of the settlement), for
compiling the budget are set puigaitps the report and the figures for the

2020/21 budget have been based on these assumptions.



10.5

32

The recommendations are consistent with the budget strategy also set out
within the report and do not impact on the financial stability of the
Constabulary. There is, however, increased pressure on reserves with the
operational funding and investment reserve being exhausted in 2021/22
based on current projections and potentially significant savings programme
targets for future years.

Future financial implications up to 2024 have been analysed but can only
provide an indication of the potential financial position that the Constabulary
and Commissioner will face. This reflects all known factors that could have
an impact on these financial plans up to 2023 and we are assuming that
funding for the increased pensions contributions will continue in the medium-
term financial forecast which is a risk that we will have to monitor closely.
The impact of increasing funding through ring fenced grants will also require
careful monitoring and the development of the ‘Bridging the Funding Gap’
Savings strategy will be required to deliver savings to sustain the budget in
the short and medium term and will be monitored through the Finance
Futures Board.

The figures within the Medium Term Financial Strategy are based on a
number of key assumptions set out within the MTFS and can only provide an
indication of the scale of the challenge that we face at this time. In particular
the figures are heavily dependent on future government funding decisions
and precept limitations.

Medium Term implications —. There are a number of scenarios that the
Constabulary will need to model with the current MTFS based on the most
prudent forecast around funding and precept increases. It does, however,
present a significant challenge, accepting it provides the worst case

scenario, based on very limited information at the moment.

ASSURANCE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER’S CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER

As the Commissioner’s Chief Financial Officer, | can provide the following

assurances: -

Government Policy — The MTFES is produced in line with the latest
government policy as applied to Police & Crime Commissioners.

CIPFA Code — the MTFES is produced in line with the Prudential Code and
the CIPFA Treasury Managepigge Gere. Details are outlined in the Treasury

Management and Capital Programme reports.



33

Council Tax — The Government confirmed that legislation through the
Localism Act provides communities with the power to veto, through a
referendum, council tax increases deemed by the government to be
excessive. The level at which council tax is deemed excessive is decided in
accordance with a set of principles determined by the Secretary of State for
Communities. For 2020/21 the revised Referendum Principle is anticipated
to be £10 for Police & Crime Commissioners. This report presents the
precept option for the Commissioner to consider, which is for an increase in
the Police element of Council Tax at Band D by £10 and £4.31 (2%).
Increases in council tax secure year on year funding, as being a part of the
base revenue budget.

Balanced budget — a balanced budget is presented.

Robustness of Estimates — | have reviewed the matters that have been
considered in drafting the proposed budget and the consequential budget
requirement, and the required level of the police precept. | am satisfied that
the procedures adopted by the Director of Finance and his team are
sufficiently robust to ensure the financial data is accurate and forms a sound
basis for the preparation of the estimates for 2020/21.

Adequacy of reserves — | consider the level of general reserves (£5.5m) to
be adequate for meeting estimated future risks. Specific reserves are
reducing (rapidly in some cases) but are at appropriate levels to support
future expenditure in the medium term. Given the size of the deficit,
however, | will keep this position under regular review.

Medium Term implications — | consider that the MTFS presents a best
estimate of the future financial pressures that the Commissioner will face. It
should be noted that inherent within the MTFS are key assumptions that (a)
the pensions grant for 2020/21 continues in future years in flat terms, (b) the
precept is increased by £10 in 2020/21 and 1.99% thereafter and (c) that
2.5% pay inflation will apply in the future. Movement in any of those key
assumptions would have significant impact on the available resources to
support policing. The Director of Finance and | will continue to monitor
national developments carefully to ensure the Commissioner and Chief

Constable are sighted on any emerging risks for Derbyshire.

Page 47



Page 48

3¢



POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE

Revenue Budget Projections 2020/21 to 2023/24

Updated January 2020

Page 49
C:\Users\16406\Desktop\Copy of Precept annexes FV

notes 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

PROJECTED STAFFING LEVELS 19/20 fte's fte's fte's

Police Officers 1758 1,835.0 1,948.0 2,033.0

PCSO's 178 179.0 179.0 179.0

Police Staff 1358 1,395.7 1,395.7 1,395.7
TOTALSTAFFING 3294 3409.7 3522.7 3607.7
PROJECTED BUDGET REQUIREMENT £m £m £m
Previous Year's Budget Requirement 181.016 192.592 202.024
less: Special Branch costs moved to Counter-Terrorism Funding
Previous Year's Budget Requirement - adjusted 181.016 192.592 202.024
Pay & Price Increases
Full Year Effect of Previous Year's Pay Award:-

Police Officers (1) 0.723 1.036 1.056

Police Staff (1) 0.243 0.480 0.499
Provision for Current Year's Pay Award & Inflation:-

Police Officers pay award (1) 1.373 1.466 1.493

Police Staff pay award (2) 0.669 0.693 0.719

Police Officer Increments 1.575 1.582 1.622

Police Staff Increments 0.595 0.610 0.625

Police Staff Pensions Revaluation 0.361

Inflation - Collaboration 0.247

Specific Price Inflation 0.114 0.152 0.136

General Inflation Contingency (2)
Total - Pay & Price Increases 5.899 6.019 6.149
Previous Year's Budget plus Pay & Price increases 186.915 198.611 208.174
Other Ongoing Changes (eg from government / policing service decisions)

Police Officers - Turnover (recruitment less wastage) (2.366) (2.472) (2.256)

Police Officers - Vacancy Factor removed 1.365

Police Officers - Overtime (no of Bank Holidays) 0.118 0.235 (.120)

Police Officers - Rent / Housing Allowance eligibility (.122) (.118) (.108)

Police Officers - Overtime Special Duty adjustment (.059)

Police Staff - misc changes in existing costs 0.125

Renewal of Pronto licences 0.255

Mobile Phones rental 0.400

Single On-line Home costs (.029) (.029)

National IT Charges 0.106

Other subscriptions to national policing services 0.152

Debt Charges - current borrowing (pre 2019/20) (.029) (.024) (.022)

Debt Charges - new borrowing (from 2019/20) 0.358 1.044 0.068

(Profit) / Loss on Joint Venture - LLP (.300)

JHQ Service Charge Increase 0.110

Investment Income 0.050

Other miscellaneous changes 0.052

Changes in specific Reserve contributions 0.011 (.043) (.048)
2019/20 Precept Decisions - full year effect

Police Officers - Reform & Engage posts 0.476

Police Staff posts 0.356

Domestic Abuse training (.063)

Taser Uplift 0.142 0.036

Other Changes (.303)
Total - Other Approved or Anticipated Changes 0.252 (.820) (2.486)
Items Agreed after 2019/20 Precept Meeting

WFM - FIMU Restructure, Taser Manager, Crime Registrar (.025)

Police Staff - Derbyshire Alert / Comms Asst 0.062

Police Staff - Information Management posts 0.034

Police Staff - Business Change posts 0.251

Police Staff - Staff Networks & Inclusion Manager 0.018

Police Staff - Wildlife Officer Post 0.8 fte 0.027

Police Staff - Joint JTC 0.016

Police Staff - Regional EMPAC Post 0.027

Assets - Rental/Cleaning Of Serious Crime Hub 0.204

Assets - Rates Roland Hill House 0.018

Business Change - Devolved Budget Requirement 0.036

Child / Adult Protection Contributions 0.040

Dogs Budget - realignment of Budget to spend 0.036

HR - Increase in EAP Contract 0.012

Income Budget - UOD Police Apprentices (.112)

20/01/2020



Income Budget - Contribution to Gateway Development Post (.022)

Income Budget - Regional EMPAC Post (.021)

Income Budget - Director of Finance DFRS Share (.042)

Income Budget - Other Changes (.089)

IS - Bes Blackberry 0.127

IS - NEP Annual Charge 0.034

IS - Fleet Management System 0.008

IS - Adobe Licensing Changes 0.022

IS - Crime Support - Digital forensics tool - Additional Licence Costs 0.020

IS - Chorus Licences - Additional Requirement Crime Support 0.010

IS - Photocopier Contract - Savings (.020)

IS -Ongoing cost of Analytics 0.030 0.160

Collaboration Changes

EMSOU - Adjustment due to loss of funding streams 0.096

Regional Forensic Collision Investigation Network 0.034

Forensics - Realignment of the EMSOU Contract 0.058

Other Collaboration Changes 0.027
Total - Items agreed after 2019/20 Precept Meeting 0.917 0.160 0.000

Estimated Uplift Officers 2.940 4.079 3.403

Uplift Set-Up costs 1.000

Increase in PCC's Commissioning Budget - net of reserves 0.250

2020/21 Supported Business Cases 0.319 (.007)

Provision for new Growth Items 1.000
BUDGET REQUIREMENT FOR YEAR 192.592 202.024 210.090
FUNDING FOR BUDGET REQUIREMENT notes 2020721 2021/22 2022123

£m £m £m
Central Government Funding

Formula grant 4 (100.504) (100.504) (100.504)

Council Tax grants (4) (8.700) (8.700) (8.700)

Pension Support grants (1.856) (1.856) (1.856)

Officer Uplift grant (7.083) (8.500) (9.917)
Total - Central Government Funding (118.143) (119.560) (120.977)
Precept Funding

Previous year Council Tax Funding (68.858) (73.153) (75.721)

Change in tax base - annual growth (5) (1.128) (1.091) (1.130)

Change in Band D Council Tax (3.211) (1.477) (1.529)

Change in Collection A/c Surplus / (Deficit) 0.044 0.000 0.000
Total - Precept Funding (73.153) (75.721) (78.380)
TOTAL PROJECTED FUNDING (191.296)| | (195.281)| | (199.357)
BUDGET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT [ | 1206| | 6743 10.733
Contribution from Operational Funding / Investment Reserve | | (1.296)| | 0.000 0.000
REMAINING (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT NOT FUNDED [| oo000|| 6743 10.733
IMPACT ON OPERATIONAL FUNDING RESERVE
Balance at start of year 2.153 0.357 0.000

Support to PCC Commissioning / additional PCSO's (.500) (.357)

Revenue surplus / (deficits) per above (11.296)

Balance at end of year 0.357 0.000 0.000

Page 50

C:\Users\16406\Desktop\Copy of Precept annexes FV

20/01/2020



Office of the PCC - 2020/21 Budget (detail)

Annex B

2020/21
2019/20 Full Year Other PROPOSED
Account Account(T) Base Budget| Inflation Increments [ Changes BUDGET

1100 Police Staff Pay 734,100 20,600 10,300 4,000 769,000
1120 Police Staff Overtime - Plain Time 1,100 1,100
1140 Police Staff National Insurance 79,300 2,200 1,100 (1,200) 81,500
1160 Police Staff Superannuation 94,700 9,900 1,200 (5,600) 100,200
1501 Training Courses 5,000 5,000
1600 NHS Re-Imbursement 0 0
1602 Recruitment Advertising 1,000 1,000
1603 Interview Expenses 500 500
2210 Hire of Rooms 1,200 1,200
3200 Police Vehicle Fuel 400 400
3300 Hire of Vehicles 1,200 1,200
3400 Other Mileage (PSV) 11,000 11,000
3403 Rall Travel 8,000 8,000
3408 Car Parking, Taxis, etc 1,000 1,000
4000 Equipment - General 3,000 3,000
4040 Furniture 2,500 2,500
4100 Accomodation / Hotel Expenses 1,800 1,800
4101 Subsistence Expenses 400 400
4291 Meals / Refreshments 1,700 1,700
4400 Printing and Stationery - General 5,000 5,000
4401 Publications 500 500
4505 Financial Contracts 48,000 48,000
4520 Professional Fees 22,400 22,400
4543 Professional Fees - Legal 17,600 17,600
4575 Media Relations 46,500 46,500
4630 Hardware - Purchase 0 0
4635 Software Purchase 17,500 17,500
4740 JARAC Attendance 7,000 7,000
4741 JARAC Mileage 1,000 1,000
4805 Non-Recruitment Advertising 4,900 4,900
4807 Conference Expenses 2,500 2,500
4888 Bank Charges 7,000 14,800 21,800
4890 Misc Expenditure 25,000 25,000
4895 Subscriptions General 67,000 67,000
Office of the PCC - Total Budget 1,219,800 32,700 12,600 12,100 1,277,200

Page 51




2020/21 PROPOSED BUDGET

Services Commissioned via the Chief Constable

2019/20 2020/21
Approved Proposed
£m £m
Police Officers 94.114 99.873
Community Support Officers 5.186 5.559
Other Police Staff 37.794 41.249
Police Pensions 2.912 3.047
Other Employee Expenses 0.834 0.792
Premises 9.212 9.761
Transport 3.760 3.667
Supplies & Services 14.629 16.085
Agency & Contracted Services 0.172 0.212
Pay & Price Contingency 0.000 0.000
Specific Grants (2.759) (2.759)
General Income (3.087) (3.380)
Derbyshire Constabulary 162.767 174.106
Contribution to East Midlands Collaboration 11.310 11.596
BCU Funding 0.318 0.318
Partnerships 0.576 0.579
Contribution to National Policing 0.215 0.163
PROPOSED GROSS SPENDING 175.186 186.762
Contribution from reserves

- PFI (.425) (.468)
- Devolved Carry-Forwards (.185) (.134)

- Other Reserves -
(.610) (.602)
PROPOSED NET SPENDING 174.576 186.160

Copy of Precept annexes FV tab:Annex C

Page 52

Annex C

20/01/2020



eqg abed

POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE
STATEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES AT 31 MARCH 2019 AND FORECAST LEVELS TO 31 MARCH 2023

2019 /20 2020 /21 2021 /22 2022/ 23
Balances at Movements SIS Contributions Balances at MF;:/(:;?:\?S Pr.oje\?ted Bl MF;:/(:;?:\?S PI’.OjE(.:[Ed Bl le;feliféifs Prp je(;ted Sellieed
31/03/19 (to) / from Between to Capital 31/03/20 (t0) / from Contrlbuyons to| Balances at (t0) / from Contrlbuyons to[ Balances at (t0) / from Contrlbupons to| Balances at
Revenue Reserves e — Capital 31/03/21 e — Capital 31/03/22 e — Capital 31/03/23
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

GENERAL RESERVES 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000
EARMARKED RESERVES
Useable:-
Operational Funding and Investment Reserve 4,276,487 (3,123,509) 1,000,000 2,152,978 (1,796,000) 356,978 (356,978) 0 0
Carry-forwards 1,647,489 (531,400) 1,116,089 (133,700) 982,389 982,389 982,389
PCC Grants & Commissioning 2,146,744 (116,000) (1,000,000) 1,030,744 (146,159) 884,585 884,585 884,585
Total Useable:- 8,070,720 (3,770,909) 0 0 4,299,811 (2,075,859) 0 2,223,952 (356,978) 0 1,866,974 0 0 1,866,974
Non-useable:-
PFI - llkeston 1,063,054 (63,595) 999,459 (74,465) 924,994 (82,985) 842,009 (92,682) 749,327
PFI - Derby 2,782,382 (333,443) 2,448,939 (371,188) 2,077,751 (405,762) 1,671,989 (444,405) 1,227,584
Insurance 70,247 5,438 75,685 5,400 81,085 81,085 81,085
Total Non-useable:- 3,915,683 (391,600) 0 3,524,083 (440,253) 0 3,083,830 (488,747) 0 2,595,083 (537,087) 0 2,057,996
TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES 11,986,403 (4,162,509) 0 0 7,823,894 (2,516,112) 0 5,307,782 (845,725) 0 4,462,057 (537,087) 0 3,924,970
TOTAL RESERVES 17,486,403 (4,162,509) 0 0 13,323,894 (2,516,112) 0 10,807,782 (845,725) 0 9,962,057 (537,087) 0 9,424,970

Copy of Precept annexes FV tab:Annex D 20/01/2020



Annex E

2020/21 PRECEPT PROPOSAL: A £10 COUNCIL TAX INCREASE

Band D = T°t".’" Collection Fund Council Tax
Base Funding
£226.60 Surplus Deficit
321,088.28 73,153,026 612,078 |- 217,656 72,758,604
SR 39,909.63 | 9,136,982 93,460 9,043,522
Borough Council
Bolsover _ 22,169.60 4,949,847 - 73,784 5,023,631
District Council
Chesterfield 20,181.08 |  6,725910| 113,477 6,612,433
Borough Council
Derby 69,502.06 | 15,625,689 - 143872 15,769,561
City Council
Bl A P e 29,828.68 6,843,082 83,903 6,759,179
District Council
SEIEE , 33,699.90 7,725,090 88,693 7,636,397
Borough Council
High Peak 30,970.00 | 7,092,822 75,020 7,017,802
Borough Council
Ngrth East Der.byshlre 31,263.33 7,145,796 61,525 7,084,271
District Council
Sputh Derbyshlre 34,474.00 7,907,808 96,000 7,811,808
District Council
Gross Revenue Expenditure Council Tax per Banding
2019/20 Approved 179,930,504 BAND 2019/20 2020/21
2020/21 Proposed 191,295,952 £ £
Increase in GRE 6.32% A 144.40 151.07
B 168.47 176.24
C 192.53 201.42
D 216.60 226.60
Council Tax Reqguirement E 264.73 276.96
F 312.87 327.31
2019/20 Approved 68,432,634 G 361.00 377.67
2020/21 Proposed 72,758,604 H 433.20 453.20
Increase in CTR 6.32%
Page 54

Copy of Precept annexes FV tab:Annex E




Agenda ltem 6
PUBLIC Agenda ltem 6

DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
23 January 2020

Report of the Director of Legal Services of Derbyshire County Council
PROPOSED TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2020/21

1. Purpose of the Report

To propose a timetable of meetings for the coming year.

2. Information and Analysis

It is proposed that the Police and Crime Panel timetable of meetings for the year 2020/21
as follows:

Thursday 21 May 2020

Thursday 25 June 2020

Thursday 10 September 2020

Thursday 19 November 2020

Thursday 21 January 2021 — precept meeting

Thursday 11 February 2021 - 2nd precept meeting (if veto exercised)
Thursday 18 March 2021

All meetings will normally commence at 10am at either County Hall or venues around the
County dependant on room availability.

It is recognised that there needs to be a degree of flexibility with any work planning
process and the Panel should note that it will be possible to vary the timetable throughout
the year should pressing matters arise.

In addition to the above meetings, a principal role for the Panel will be to conduct
confirmation hearings for the Police and Crime Commissioner’s senior appointments.
When notification of these appointments is made the Panel must review the senior
appointment and make a report to the Police and Crime Commissioner within a period of
three weeks and so it may be necessary for additional meetings to be held at short notice.

3. Considerations

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered:
financial, legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality and diversity, human
resources, environmental, health and transport considerations.

4. OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That the Panel agrees the timetable of meetings for 2020/2021 is agreed.

Simon Hobbs
Director of Legal Services

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

PUBLIC Agenda Item 7
DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
23" January 2020
Report of the Director of Legal Services of Derbyshire County Council
COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE

1. Purpose of the Report

Following discussion at the previous meeting of the Panel, to consider
for review the current Complaints Procedure adopted by Derbyshire’s
Police and Crime Panel (PCP).

2. Information and Analysis

The current Complaints Procedure was adopted by Derbyshire’s Police
and Crime Panel in April 2013. A copy of the Procedure is attached at
Appendix 1.

The Panel has statutory responsibilities under the Elected Local
Policing bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012. These
include the Panel ensuring that it is kept informed about complaints and
conduct matters and their handling in respect of Derbyshire’s Police and
Crime Commissioner and his Deputy, together with responsibilities
regarding informal resolution in respect of particular complaints. There
are further requirements to notify and refer complaints to the
Independent Police Complaints Commission in certain circumstances.

In accordance with the regulations detailed above, the Panel is able to
delegate the receipt, initial handling and recording functions relating to
complaints to the Chief Executive of the Commissioner or the
Monitoring Officer of the host authority (the Director of Legal Services of
Derbyshire County Council). Under the current procedure, at paragraph
4.1, the Panel has delegated authority for the initial handling of
complaints together with other aspects of the process to Derbyshire
County Council’s Monitoring Officer and Director of Legal Services
under section 101(2) of the Local Government Act 1972.

The Panel is also able to delegate the functions regarding informal
resolution to a sub-committee, a single member of the Panel, or to a
person who is not a member of the Panel. Under the current
Procedure, the Panel has also delegated this function to the Monitoring

Page 57



Officer and Director of Legal Services of Derbyshire County Council
under at paragraph 4.1.

The current Complaints Procedure has been in place since April 2013
and Members of the Panel have indicated a wish to review it.

LGA guidance from May 2015 “Good Practice for Police and Crime
Panels: Guidance Document” recommends that in reviewing the
complaints procedure, it is good practice for panels to consider:
e Clearly setting out responsibility for all types of complaint
e Reviewing whether a triage system would be useful
e Making sure that complainants understand that recording a
complaint is not the same as upholding it
e Considering whether it is appropriate for the chair of the panel to
see all complaints
e Many complaints against police officers to the IPCC are partly
upheld through lack of recording although the substance later
fails. The produces unsatisfactory outcomes - consider
scrutinising the PCC'’s performance in tackling this
e Having clear guidance for recording complaints
e Developing clear guidance for recording complaints
e Rather than referring to the IPCC general casework team;
referrals should be to a specialist link with experience of PCC
complaints
e Having a process to take back and conclude complaints when
received back from the IPCC

Therefore, Members may consider it appropriate to identify a working

party to review the Complaints Procedure, taking into account the
guidance provided by the LGA.

Considerations

In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has been
considered: financial, legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality
and diversity, human resources, environmental, health and transport
considerations.

Background Papers

The file currently held by the Director of Legal Services.

Page 58



5. Officer’'s Recommendation

That a working group from the Panel is established to review the
Complaints Procedure.

Simon Hobbs
Director of Legal Services

Derbyshire County Council

Page 59



Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

Appendix

Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel

Complaints Procedure

Background

This procedure has been adopted to ensure compliance with the Elected Local
Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012 (‘the
Regulations’) which are issued under the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011.

This policy covers complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner for
Derbyshire (‘the Commissioner’) and the Deputy Police and Crime
Commissioner for Derbyshire (‘the Deputy Commissioner’). It does not cover
complaints against the Commissioner’s office and staff, or complaints regarding
operational policing, the Chief Constable and other police officers.

Aims/Objectives
To set out the way complaints against the Commissioner and the Deputy
Commissioner will be handled by the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel (‘the

Panel’).

To reassure the public that complaints against the Commissioner and the
Deputy Commissioner are dealt with fairly and appropriately.

To reassure the public that any complaint relating to a criminal offence will be
referred by the Panel to the Independent Police Complaints Commission
(‘IPCC).

Definitions

‘Complaint’: is any complaint about the conduct of a commissioner or deputy
commissioner.

‘Conduct Matter’: is an indication that a commissioner or deputy commissioner
may have committed a criminal offence, which comes to light otherwise than by
way of a complaint (for example, through legal proceedings or media reporting).
‘Serious Complaint’: is a particular type of complaint — one which alleges that
the commissioner or deputy commissioner has committed a criminal offence.

Submitting a complaint

Page 60



Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

4.1

4.2

7.1

The Panel has delegated authority for the initial handling of complaints, together
with other aspects of the process, to Derbyshire County Council’s Monitoring
Officer and Director of Legal Services, under Section 101(2) of the Local
Government Act 1972.

Complaints should be sent to:

Mr Simon Hobbs

Director of Legal Services
Derbyshire County Council
County Hall

Matlock

Derbyshire

DE4 3AG

Or emailed to simon.hobbs@derbyshire.gov.uk

When making a complaint it is helpful to provide as much information as
possible, to be specific regarding what was allegedly said or done, the date it
happened, and whether there were any witnesses. A form is available on the
website below which complainants may find useful.

www.derbyshire.gov.uk/community/derbyshire police and crime panel

Timescales

Wherever possible complaints will be acknowledged within 5 working days, and
concluded within 40 working days if dealt with through informal resolution
(under paragraph 14 below).

Duty to preserve evidence

Where a complaint is received there is a duty to ensure that all appropriate
steps are taken to obtain and preserve evidence relating to the complaint. This
duty is on-going until or unless arrangements are made for the complaint to be
dealt with through informal resolution (under paragraph 14 below).
Notification and recording of complaints

A complaint which:

a) relates to the Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner for Derbyshire;

b) is not already being dealt with by means of criminal proceedings;

¢) has not been withdrawn (under paragraph 12); and

d) is received by or notified to the Panel,

will be recorded.

Page 61


mailto:simon.hobbs@derbyshire.gov.uk
http://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/community/derbyshire_police_and_crime_panel/default.asp

Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

Where a complaint which satisfies paragraph 7.1(a)-(c) above is made to the
IPCC, the Chief Constable, the Commissioner or the Deputy Commissioner that
person/body will give notification of the complaint to the Panel.

If the complaint relates to a commissioner or deputy commissioner of another
police force area, the police and crime panel (PCP) for that area will be notified
and will deal with the complaint.

Where the complaint is not notified or recorded as above, the person/body who
received the complaint shall notify the complainant of this decision and the
grounds for it.

Copies of complaints

The Panel will supply the complainant with a copy of the record made of a
complaint recorded in accordance with paragraph 7.1 above.

The Panel will supply the subject of the complaint with a copy of the
complaint, unless to do so:

e might prejudice any criminal investigation or pending proceedings, or
e would otherwise be contrary to the public interest.

The copy of the complaint supplied under paragraph 8.2 above may be
anonymised.

A decision not to supply a copy of the complaint under paragraph 8.2 above will
be kept under regular review.
Notification and recording of Conduct Matters

Where a Conduct Matter comes to the attention of the Panel (e.g. in civil
proceedings), the Panel will record the matter, unless:

e the Panel is not the relevant PCP in relation to the office holderinvolved;
e the matter has already been recorded as a complaint; or
e the matter is the subject of past or present criminal proceedings against

the office holder.
If the Panel is not the relevant PCP in relation to the office holder, the Panel
will notify the relevant PCP.

Reference to the Independent Police Complaints Commissioner (IPCC)

The Panel is not responsible for investigating or determining whether a crime
has been committed. The Panel has delegated authority to Derbyshire County

3
Page 62



Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

11.

111

11.2

Council’s Director of Legal Services for filtering Complaints and deciding which
Complaints may amount to Serious Complaints. The Director of Legal Services
may take advice from the IPCC before making a referral.

The Director of Legal Services will refer the following to the IPCC:

e Any Serious Complaint;

e Any Conduct Matter it has recorded; and

e Any complaint or matter which the IPCC notifies the Panel that it requires
to be referred.

The referral will be made as soon as practicable and, in any event, no later than
the close of business the day after the Director of Legal Services becomes
aware that the matter should be referred.

Where the Director of Legal Services refers a complaint or Conduct Matter
he/she will notify the complainant and, except where doing so might prejudice
a possible future investigation, the subject of the complaint or Conduct Matter.

The IPCC may refer any complaint back for resolution.

Disapplication of the Regulations: circumstances when the Panel does
not need to deal with acomplaint

Where a complaint is not a Serious Complaint or the IPCC has referred the
complaint back to the Panel, the Director of Legal Services may decide not to
subject the complaint to resolution or to take any action at all, in the following
circumstances: -

e where the complaint has been made by a member of the Commissioner’s
staff, arising from their work;

e where the complaint is more than 12 months old where there is no good
reason for the delay or the delay would be likely to cause injustice;

e where the complaint is about conduct that is already the subject of another
complaint;

e where the complaint is anonymous;

e where the complaint is vexatious, oppressive or otherwise an abuse of
process for dealing with complaints; or

e where the complaint is repetitious (e.g. where the complaint is substantially
the same as a previous complaint which has already been dealt with under
the Regulations and it contains no fresh allegations or fresh evidence).

Where no action is to be taken in relation to a complaint, the complainant will
be notified of this decision and the reason for it.

4
Page 63



Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

13.

14.

14.1

14.2

Withdrawn complaints
A complainant can withdraw or discontinue their complaint at any time.

If the Panel receives signed, written notification (addressed to the Director of
Legal Services) that the complaint is withdrawn or discontinued this will be
recorded.

If a complainant indicates that they wish to withdraw or discontinue their
complaint but no signed, written notification is received, the Director of Legal
Services will write to the complainant to determine whether or not they wish to
withdraw or discontinue. If the complainant confirms that they wish to withdraw
or discontinue the complaint, or does not reply within 21 days, the Director of
Legal Services will treat it as if he/she had received a signed, written notification
as above.

If the complaint has been referred to the IPCC they must be updated.

The Panel (or IPCC) may decide to treat the withdrawn/discontinued complaint
as a Conduct Matter. This decision will be made by the Director of Legal
Services in consultation with the Chair of the Panel. The procedure for Conduct
Matters will thereafter be followed.

The person who is the subject of the complaint will be kept informed, unless to
do so might prejudice a criminal investigation or pending proceedings, or be
contrary to the public interest.

Conduct occurring outside England and Wales

The Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner are under a duty to notify the
Panel, via the Director of Legal Services, of any allegation, investigation or
proceedings relating to their conduct outside England and Wales. The Panel
can take whatever action it thinks fit in these circumstances. This decision will
be made by the Director of Legal Services in consultation with the Chair and/or
Vice-Chair of the Panel.

Informal resolution of complaints

Informal resolution is a way of dealing with a complaint by solving, explaining
or settling the matter directly with the complainant, without an investigation or
formal proceedings. It is a flexible process that may be adapted to the needs of

the complainant and the individual complaint.

Informal resolution will involve:

Page 64



Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

15.

15.1

e no investigation, other than requiring the subject of the complaint to provide
information and documents to the Panel and attend to answer questions;

e an opportunity for the complainant and the subject of the complaint to
comment on the complaint as soon as is practicable;

e recording if the subject of the complaint chooses not to comment on the
complaint; and

e no tendering of an apology on behalf of the subject of the complaint unless
that person has admitted the conduct in question and agreed to the apology.

This paragraph applies where the Panel:

e has recorded the complaint;
e has not referred the complaint to the IPCC or has had it referred back; and
e has not decided to disapply the Regulations under paragraph 11.

Where this paragraph applies the Director of Legal Services, in consultation
with the Chair and/or Vice-Chair of the Panel, will make arrangements for the
informal resolution of the complaint, unless he/she determines that the
complaint has already been satisfactorily dealt with.

Making arrangements for informal resolution include deciding whether the
process will be handled by

e a sub-committee of the Panel;

e a single member of the Panel; or

e another person, such as the Commissioner’s Chief Executive, the Director
of Legal Services, a voluntary organisation or a private mediation company.

The Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner cannot be appointed to
informally resolve complaints.

The Panel can take back responsibility for informal resolution at any time.
Informal resolution will be discontinued if the IPCC notifies the Panel that they
require the complaint to be referred to them, or if the Director of Legal Services,

in consultation with the Chair and/or Vice-Chair of the Panel, decides the
complaint should be referred to the IPCC.

The outcome of informal resolution
There will be no formal sanctions with informal resolution; ultimately the

Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner are held accountable by the ballot
box.

Page 65



Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

15.2

16.

16.1

16.2

17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

18.

18.1

18.2

The aim is to resolve the complaint to the satisfaction of the parties involved.
For example, the subject of the complaint may agree that an apology would be
appropriate, an explanation might resolve the concern, or an agreement on how
to move forward may be reached following mediation.

Recording and publishing the outcome of informal resolution

A record of the outcome of the informal resolution will be made as soon as
practicable after the process is completed. Copies will be provided to the
complainant and the subject of the complaint.

The record of the outcome of informal resolution can be published if it is
considered to be in the public interest. This decision rests with the Director of
Legal Services in consultation with the Chair and/or Vice-Chair of the Panel.
Before doing so the complainant and the subject of the complaint will be invited
to comment and their views will be considered.

Keeping records for monitoring purposes

The Panel will keep a record of every:

e complaint and purported complaint it receives;
e every Conduct Matter recorded by it; and

e every action taken under the Regulations.

The record will be kept until 12 months after the Commissioner and/or Deputy
Commissioner leaves office. The record will include the name of the
complainant, details of the complaint/Conduct Matter and how the matter has
been dealt with.

Summary reports regarding complaints dealt with under this procedure will be
submitted to the Panel on an annual basis.

Appeals
There is no right of appeal in relation to informal resolution.

A complaint can be made about the way a matter was handled, for example if
it was delayed or if there was a failure to record a complaint. In the first instance
the complaint should be addressed to the Director of Legal Services:

The Director of Legal Services
Derbyshire County Council
County Hall

Matlock

Derbyshire

DE4 3AG

Page 66



Approved by the Panel, 30 April 2013

18.3 If a satisfactory response is not received the complainant can refer the matter
to the Local Government Ombudsman:

The Local Government Ombudsman
PO Box 4771

Coventry

CV4 OEH

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8

PUBLIC Agenda Item 8

DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

239 January 2020

Report of the Director of Legal and Democratic Services of Derbyshire County
Council

GRANT FUNDING

1. Purpose of the Report

To consider the position regarding grant funding available to the Police and Crime
Panel from the Home Office.

2. Information and Analysis

In establishing Police and Crime Panels, the Home office agreed that funding
would be available to ensure that there is a Police and Crime Panel for the police
area able to carry out its scrutiny functions and responsibilities as set out in the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. A limited grant is provided on
application to each Local Authority acting as the Host Authority for the provision of
administrative and management support to facilitate the Panel.

The grant available does vary from year to year. For the financial year 2019-
2020, the funding available is a grant of up to £67,100. The letter dated 16th
August 2019 confirming the offer of the grant is attached at Appendix 1 and the
grant agreement is attached at Appendix 2. The grant is paid upon application
and a return detailing costs incurred. Usually, there is a requirement to report at
the mid-point of the year as well as at the end of the financial year. However, this
year, the Home Office has agreed that the return need only be provided at the end
of the financial year and so will be provided in March.

A further report will be provided for consideration by the Panel following
submission of the return to the Home Office for the financial year 2019/2020 and
notification of grant funding available for the financial year 2020/2021.

Costs claimed for panel administration include officer time in supporting and
advising the Panel as well as administrative costs in respect of the production and
circulation reports (including printing and postage), the cost of meeting rooms and
training.

The grant can also cover member expenses and allowances. However, the Panel
arrangements for the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel confirm that no
allowance or expenses payments will be made by the Panel itself to councillor
members and that any allowances or expenses payment which may be made
councillor members arising out of Panel Membership shall be determined and
borne by the appointing council forPeaagcg gémel member individually. Derbyshire



County Council as the host authority reimburses reasonable expenses to
independent members provided that this is agreed as part of the annual budget
approved by the Panel.

The completed returns to the Home Office showing Panel expenditure for the

years 2016-2017 (Appendix 3), 2017-2018 (Appendix 4), 2018-2019 (Appendices
5a and 5b) are attached as appendices.

. Financial Considerations

As detailed within the report.

. Legal Considerations

The functions and responsibilities of Police and Crime Panels are set out in the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and are to scrutinise the actions
and decisions of police and crime commissioners, and provide support and
challenge to the commissioner in the exercise of their functions. They focus their
attention on key strategic actions and decisions taken by the commissioner,
including whether they have achieved the objectives set out in their police and
crime plan, considered the relevant priorities of their community safety partners
and consulted appropriately with the public.

The grant is paid in exercise of the power conferred upon the Secretary of State

for the Home Department under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003 to
provide financial support to a local authority in England or Wales.

. Other Considerations

In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equality and diversity, human
resources, environmental, health and transport considerations.

. Background Papers

The file currently held by the Director of Legal and Democratic Services.

. Officer’'s Recommendation

That the Police and Crime Panel notes;
7.1 the position regarding grant funding; and

7.2 that a future report will be brought for consideration by the Panel following
submission of the return Ig) the7d—|ome Office for the financial year
age



2019/2020 and notification of grant funding available for the financial year
2020/2021.

Simon Hobbs
Director of Legal & Democratic Services
Derbyshire County Council

Page 71



APPENDIX |

) : C _ 8" Fioor Fry Building
qf;'“> 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF
020 7035 3011

Home Ofﬁce - - pecpartnersenquiries@homeoffice. gov, uk

Claire Bell

Commissioning, Communities and Policy
Derbyshire County Council

‘ claire.bell@derbyshire.gov.uk

16 August 2019

Dear Claire

DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL GRANT —
FINANCIAL YEAR 2019/20.

| am writing to confirm the offer of a grant of u;d fo £67,100.00 ta Derbyshire
County Council as host authority in respect of the Derbyshire Police and Crime
Panel (PCP). S '

Payment of this grant, to the agreed schedule in the attached Grant Agreemeni,

is subject to'your acceptance of this offer and the standard terms and conditions .

of the Grant Agreement.

To allow public scrutiny of PCP spending, PCPs must publish, as a minimum
on their website, defails of all their expenditure (or, where that is not pdssible,
on the host authority’s website).” This will include details of all panel
-administration costs and individual panel member claims for expenses and
allowances, C o

If you wish to accept this offer of grant funding, please sign and return to the
above email address, one copy ‘of the Grant Agreement, ensuring that you
complete the Acceptance of Grant pages. Please be aware that no payments
‘will be released until receipt of the signed documentation,

Yours sincerely

;_D e

Lauren Diffey : o g
Head of PCC Policy, Scrutiny and Accountability

‘Page 72

Police Strategy and Reform Unit



Page 73



APPENDIA A

&

Ome Office

_GRANT AGREEMENT -
betweén
YHE SEGRETARY OF STATE FOR THE HOME DEPARTMENT
and
DERBYSHIRE COUI\IITYICOUNCIL‘

| FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE AND CRIME PANELS
FOR THE PERIOD 01 APR 2019 TO 31 MAR 2020 -

~ HOME OFFICE |
- Policing Directorate o o
Crime, Policing and Fire Group
6" Floor Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF

Page 74




CONTENTS PAGE
CONTENTS PAGE.......... TPV ROTTU TS T TSROV PPV PPISOSIVCPTPTTPRPPP 1
HOME OFFICE GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS ..ot 3
FVEPOAUGHION .ocervor e eevsve s essssims s sssissboness s U o 3
Definitions and Interpretations......, .................................................................. 3
L1 TR — OO
“Amount of the Grant...........mmmnness s e 6
Timing of the L 1 USRI SR IRPOOIIS st 6
‘Managing the Grant..........omon. SRRSO ERA 8
RecOrds t0 be Kept........voiccccesisnierssssisinnen: e v 9
Eligible and Ineligible Expenditure ................. e e r e . 10
Audit and mspectlon ......... e oreressersisarenebensatessrebesborbesnane P E SRS R AR R AR SRR RS 10

Lawful conduct, equal opportunltles use of volunteers and activities

~ funded by the Grant........... TR S OO T IO PPV FPRPTE PR 11 -

Conflict of interest and financial or other irregularities ..., 12

" Procurement ProceUres ... e s 13
INSUFANGE COVEFAGE ...cpsrvvveresesiversssresesssesiess T 15
INAEMNIY .cocvvcrre e e, et s e aennsssiene 15
Intellectual Property Rights and Branding............m S 15
Breach of Grant Conditions .......... ereriebeseerieesbeanieerree s s e b 16
Funding Period and Termination including Consequences.............. e 18
Amendments to the Grant Agreement .................................... e s 19
Confidentiality ...t et et et 20
Data Protection, Data Sharing, Information Acts, Pubhclty and .
TEANSPALEICY .o.vovirirrssnsiniss s issssbr s bbb s bbb 20
NOtICES .oeovverrioens s s e 22
Contract (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 .........cceuernn SO 22
Dispute ReSOIIHION .....covunivirrennrisiissrsssi s Lereses ety 22
GOoVerning Law ... TSRS OO 23
ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT......ccco00.us eesrerrasenetvaseetass rekeresh RS ROR SRR RS e e R TR be e 24
SCHEDULE 1 - THE PURPOSE‘...._........,....».' ................ et e 24
The Project.............. i e e eser e e da b W25
Background.............. s TP U RSO TURTRPUT SRR 25
Key Deliverables ..o, ettt I 25

Key Roles and Responsibilities ... et 25
Indicative Expenditure Breaktown ... oot 26
SCHEDULE 2 — PAYMENT AND REPORTING SCHEDULE ......cccovvivcnienn 27
. 1
‘Page 75




- SCHEDULE 3 ~ IN-YEAR MONITORING iNFORMATiON_ REQUIREMENTS

................................................................................................................................ 28
Critical Success Factors .........coooceeverrevriev e, perrerre ety e - 28
Reporting.......ccovvviiiiiiciiriscn e e e e e sre e 28
Annual Review ............c.ocovev e, et e e ae e s e ra e et 29
" SCHEDULE 4 — OUTTURN FORECAST .......... e oo 30
SCHEDULE 5 - DATA SHARING PROTOCOL (DSP) ... R § O
SCHEDULE 6 ~ GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR). 31
SCHEDULE 7 - AID DlVERSION ........... 31
ANNEX A....coooccarveoss st sessesssossivesseossssossesessssssios s soee s sees oo 32
Grant Claim Form.......... R et ettt tran) e 32
ANNEX B....o.ooiiiiire i ressssiesiaes it sss e e sessessias s ies st e ss e s oot eeso. 34
OULEUIN SEALEMENT (..o.oiir e e et 34
ANNEX C..ooooevsecseetesesseeseesse s 36
Authorised Representatives ...t 36
ANNEX Dottt et ettt oeees s 37
Delivery Proposa! ............................................................................................... 37
ANNEXE........oiiiirinini i et es s snee s dons st s sssses ossessseoses e eee e 38
Limitations on Funding Use and Inellglble Expenditure......................... 38
ANNEX F.ooooviovvrviummmmenssosesssnsssssssssssasmensesemsesesessssssssssssesmsesssoso '. .................... 40
Change Control RECOId. .o, e et bt b et 40
Grant Variation Notice (TemMPIALE) ..ot e 41
ANNEX G ...oooc...... e s s e e et e st 42
Grant Funding Letter................... et e 42
ANNEX H..ovcovieencbesoososieeeesseseessosoessseesseisioemeesess oo oot 43
Clarification Response LoG ... oo oo seeeeee oo, 43
2

Page 76




HOME OFFICE GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This Grant Agreement is made on 16 August 2019
Between:

(1) The Secretary of State for the Home Department acting on behalf of
the Crown through the Home Office’s Police Strategy and Reform Unit
‘whose principal address is at 2 Marsham Street l.ondon SW1P 4DF
(the "Author;ty”)

AND

(2) Derbyshlre County Council whose principal address is at County Hail
. Matlock DE4 3EG (the “Recipient").

IN RELATION 'rd THE PURPOSE:
Project Name: Police and Cnme Panels
~ Project Reference; 17

Project Description: to maintain a police and crime panel for the Derbyshire
Constabulary police force area as fut!y detailed in Schedule 1 (the
“Purpose”).

1. Introduction.

1.1. The Authority is exercising the power conferred to it by sectron 31 of -
the Local Government Act 2003 to make awards of grant funding.

1.2.  This agreement {the “Grant Agreement”) sets out the legally binding
‘terms and conditions which apply to the Authority providing the Grant
and to the Recipient receiving the Grant. It consists of twenty-four
(24} Clauses, four (4) Schedules and seven (7) Annexes.

1.3. It is supplementary to the Grant Funding Letter (as defined below)
: and replaces any previously agreed grant terms and conditions
between the Authority and the Recipient to deliver the Police and
Crime Panel.

1.4. = The Recipient must be cogmsant of, and act in acoordance with, any

' devolved policy bulletins, enactments, orders, statutes, regulations or
other similar instruments as appropriate. For exampie where the
Purpose is delivered in Wales, it must be provided in such a way as
to not treat the Welsh language less favourably than English, in’
accordance with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.

2. Definitions and Interpretations

2.1.  In this Grant Agreement:

Page 77



“Advance of Need” means a payment made ahead of the relevant
-expenditure being.identified;

"Annex’ means the annexes attached o this Grant Agreemenf;

“Asset’ means any physical item, group of items, or financial asset
purchased, donated or developed together, which cost more than
£5,000 (five thousand pounds and no pence), excluding VAT, or has
a continuous useful life of 12 (twelve) Months or more, and is
purchased wholly or partially using the Grant;

“Authorised Representatives’ means the duly authorised officers,
directors, employees etc of either Party as recorded in Annex G;

© A"Calendar Day” means any calendar day, Sunday through
Saturday inclusive;

“Clause” means the clauses in these Terms and Conditions which
form part of this Grant Agreement;

“Commencement Date” means the date on which the Grant
Agreement comes into effect and from which Eligible Expenditure
may be claimed, being 01 April 2019;

“Controller and Processor” take the meaning given in-the GDPR,;

“Data Protection Legislation” means (i) the General Data Protection
'Regulations {'GDPR’) 2016/679 inciuding the Law Enforcement
Directive, (if) the Data Protection Act 2018 ('DPA 2018’} to the extent
that it relates to the processing of Personail Data and privacy, and (i)
all applicable Law about the processing of Personal Data and privacy;

“Eligible Expenditure™ means all costs, expenses, liabilities and
obligations that are related to, incurred by or arise out of the delivery;
activities and operations of the Purpose by the Recipient from the
Commencement Date, and which comply in all respects with the
eligibility rules set out in this Grant Agreement as determined by the
Authority at its sole discretion;

A “Finance Officer” means a treasurer, finance officer or other officer ,
of equivalent standing of the Recipient, and a Senior Finance Officer
shall hold suitable position and authority.

The “Funding Period” means the period for which the Grant is
provided from the Commencement Date to 31 March 2020.

The “Grant” means the grant payable by the Authority to the
Recipient under the terms of this Grant Agreement, the amount of
which (the "Grant Amount”) shall not be more than 31xty seven
thousand, one hundred pounds (£67,100).

“Grant Claim” means a payment request submitted on the form found
at Annex A by the Recipient {o the Authonty detailing its claim for
Eligible Expenditure;

The “Grant Funding Letter” means the letter dated 16 August 2019
~ from the Authority to the Recipient which sets out supplementary

Page 78




2.2,

information in relation to the Grant a copy of which is set out in
Annex G; _

“Grant Sponsor” means the individual who has been nominated by

~ the Authority to be the principal point of contact for the Recipient in

relation to the Grant Agreement and 'whose name is recorded in
Arinex C;

“Inellglble Expenditure” means expendlture whlch is not Ehgib
Expenditure and as further detailed in Annex E,;

“Law” means any apphcable law, statute, bye~]aw, regulation, order,
regulatory policy, guidance or industry code, judgment of a relevant
court of faw, or directives or requirements of any regulatory body,
delegated or subordinate legislation; :

A “Mediator” means any independent person/body appointed by both
Parties to mediate upon any dispute.

A “Month” means any calendar month;

An “Outturn Statement’ means the detailed end of year monitoring

report template found at Annex B to be submitted by the Recipient to
the Authority containing a full breakdown of expenditure and income
for the entire Funding Period,;

A “Party means a signatory to this Grant Agreement

"Personal Data” has the meaning given to it in the Data Protectton
Legislation;

"Schedule” means the Schedules attached to this Grant Agreement;

“Third Party” means any party whether person or organisation other
than the Authority or the Recipient; and :

A "Working Day" meanis any day from Monday to Friday (inclusive)

which is not specified or proclaimed as a bank holiday in England and
Wales pursuant to section 1 of the Banking and-Financial Dealings

 Act 1971 including Christmas Day and Good Friday; and

In this Grant Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:
a. References to the singular include the plural, and vice versa;
b. References to a gender include the other gender and the neuter;

c. References to a person include an individual, company, body
corporate, corporation, unincorporated association, firm
partnership or other legal entity or Crown Body;

d. References in this Grant. Agreement to Clauses, Appendices,
Annexes and the Schedule are references to the clauses, sub-
clauses, appendices annexes and schedu!e to this Grant
Agreement;

e. The headings in this Grant Agreement are for ease of reference
only and shall hot affect the interpretation or construction of this
Grant Agresment;

Page 79



3.2,

4.2.

4.3.

4.4

. References to an Act of Parliament or any Law shall be deemed
to include any subordinate legislation of any sort made, or as
amended, extended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time
under that Act; '

g. Any references to policy bulletiris, enactments, orders; statutes,

. regulations or other similar instruments shall be construed as a .
reference to the policy bulletin, enactment, order, statute,
regulation or instrument as amended or replaced by any
subsequent policy bulletin, statute, enactment, order, regulation,
or instrument;

h.  Nothing in this Grant Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a
parinership or agency relationship between the Parties at any
time, ' , , )

Grant_Offer

' Subje‘ét to the Recipient complying with this Grant Agreement, the

Authority offers to reimburse the Recipient as a contribution towards ,
its Eligible Expenditure. ‘ ~

The Recipient acknowledges that the Authority agrees to fund it only
for the Grant Amount, the Funding Period and for the Purpose
specified in this Grant Agreement and the Grant Funding Letter,

Amount of the Grant

- The Authority has agreed funding of up to the Grant Amount; the

Grant Amount will not be increased in the event of any overspend by
the Recipient in its delivery of the Purpose. :

It is the Recipient's responsibility to ensure that its receipt,
management and expenditure of the Grant complies with all tax
requirements in'force at the time and for the duration of the Grant
Agreement. '

The Recipient acknowledges that the Grant and any Eligible
Expenditure claimed are not paid as a consideration for any taxable
supply for VAT purposes. The Grant Amount and any Eligible
Expenditure claimed are therefore deemed 1o be inclusive of all VAT
chargeable, and the Parties agree that the Authority's obligation does
not extend to paying any additional amounts in respect of VAT,

‘The Recipient acknowledges that unless explicitly agreed by the
- Authority in writing in advance, the Grant wili not be used to meet the

cost of any import, customs duties or any other taxes or similar

- charges applied by local govemments or by any local public authority,

Timing of the G‘rant.

Grant Claims will be paid in accordance with the payment profile -
detailed in Schedule 2 within thirty (30) Calendar Days of the receipt
Page 80




and agreement of a correctly submitted Annex A and all supporting
monitoring information as set out in Schedule 3.

- The Aﬂthority shall have no liability to the Re'cipient for any Losses
caused by a delay in the approval of, or amendment to, Eligible -
Expenditure howsoever arising. ' - o

In order for the Grant to be released, the Authority will require the

Recipient to: | ' : o

a. have signed and returned a copy of this Grant Agreement to the
Authority, and ~ ‘

b, have provided the appropriate bank details, and

¢. be in compliance with the Grant Agreement throughout the period
for which Eligible Expenditure is being claimed.

Payments will be made by BACS using account details that the Recipient
must supply to the Authotity. The Recipient is responsible for ensuring
that the Authority has been notified of its correct bank account details
and any subsequent changes. Original notification of, and all
subsequent amendments to, the Recipient's bank details must be
provided on its own headed notepaper duly signed by a Senior

Finance Officer.

The information which the Recipient must supply to the Authority to
allow BACS payments is as follows:
Recipient Address Details
' 1. Registered address
9. Credit Control/Finance

Address .
Contact Details. | Payment Details
1. Email address for purchase 1. Bank Name
orders ~ 2, Branch name and -
2. Email address for remittance address _
advice ‘ 3. Company Bank Account
3. Email address for invoice Name S
~ Quenes : 4. Bank Account Number
4. Telephone Number for :
Accounts Receivable/Credit - 5. Bank Acoount Sort Code
. Contro! '

_The Authority is not permitted to pay the Grant in Advance of Need. If
the Authority reasonably believes that payment is being made in
Advance of Need, it may change the timing and/or the amount of any
outstanding Grant payments. . ' '

Nothing in this Grant Agreement shall oblige the Authority to
. reimburse claims against the Grant beyond the Funding Period.

Page 81



6.2.

6.3.
6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9,

6.10.

Managing the Grant

Each Party shall record the contact details of their Authorised
Representatives at Annex C. At a minimum these must be the Grant
Sponsor and Project Manager,

The Recipient shall:

a. have a sound administration.and audit process, including
financial safeguards against fraud, theft, money laundering,
counter-terrorist financing or any other impropriety or
mismanagement in connection with the admlmstratlon of the
Grant,

b. ensure that the adequacy of the systems in place are subject to
independent audit, the results of which must be shared with the
Authorlty, and

¢, ensure that appropriate professional arrangements are but in
place for the management of the Grant and the reportmg of
expenditure

The Remplent should take all necessary steps to ensure that the
Grant is accounted for and monitored separately from the Recipient’s

- other funding streams.

Monies and income derived from Thlrd Parties as Supp]ementary
Funding shall not constitute the Grant and will be accounted for,
identified and reported on separately.

The Recipient may not vire {move) funds between this Grant and
other grants made to it.

The Recipient shall account for the Grant on an accruals basis. This
requires the cost of goods or services to be recognised when the
goods or services are received, rather than when they are paid for. -

In support of Grant Claims, and in accordance with the monitoring
and reporting requirements detailed in Schedule 3, using the template
at Annex A the Recipient shall provide the Authorlty with biannual
narrative reports detailing progress against critical success factors;
these should also inciude headline financial reconciliations
highlighting spend and any significant fmanmal variances,

underspend or overspend.

At the end of each Funding Period, the Recipient sha!l submlt an
Outturn Statement to the Authority. This Outturn Statement must:

a, be in the format set out in Annex B, and
b. be signed by a Finance Officer.

The Authority may ask the Recsplent to clarify information provided to
it. If so, the Recipient shall comply with any such request. .

The Authority may at its discretion provide the Recipient with
feedback on the adequacy of any repori or claim and may also
require the Recipient fo re-submit a report or claim, having taken into
account any issues raised in the Authority’s feedback. :

Page 82




6.11.

6.12.

' 6.13.

- 6.14.

7.
7.1.

7.2.

The Recipient shall promptly notify and repay to the Authority any
overpayment or monies incorrectly paid to it. This includes (without
limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has
been paid or where Grant has been paid in error before the Recipient
has complied with afl conditions attaching to the Grant.

The Recipient shall be mindful of the UK Government's “Greening
Government Commitments™ both current and as revised, updated or
amended, and ensure that all its activities and those of its Delivery
Partners are delivered in accordance with these.

The Recipient shall have appropriate and proportionate contingency
plang ifi place to efisure continuity of delivery of the Purpose, and the
Authority shall have sight of these contingency plans and shall have
the right to request assurance from the Recipient as to their
implémentation, where necessary, to ensure continuity of delivery of
the Purpose. :

The Recipient should ensure it has in 'placevsuitable measures for the
orderly management of its business operations following the expiry or
termination of this Grant Agreement howsoever caused. '

Records to be kept

The Reci'piént shali maintain and operate effective monitoring and
financial management systems, and keep-a record of all:

- a. Eligible Expenditure and retain-all accounting records rélating to

the Eligible Expenditure for a period of at least seven (7) years

~ after the end of the Funding Periods. Accounting records should
include: original invoices, receipts, minutes from meetings,
accounts, deeds, interest accrued, returns on investments, -
income generated, Supplementary Funding received and any
other relevant documentation, whether in writing or electronic
form, and o S

b. gifts, both given and received, in bonnection with the Purpose.
. Where the Recipient is paying Grant monies to Delivery Partners, and

any Delivery Partner(s) wish to retain such original documentation,
the Recipient shouid obtain from the Delivery. Partner(s). -

a. certified copies of the accounting documents justifying income
and expenditure incurred by the Delivery Partner(s) in relation to
the Purpose, o

b. an annual, written statement, signed by the Delivery Partner's
treasurer or equivalent senior finance officer, of how the money
was spent, and : ~

~c. asigned undertaking that the Delivery Partner will retain such

documents for the period prescribed above.

! https:llwww.qov.u_quovernmenUpubtications!clreenlnq—qovernment-commllments—.'zm6—t0-'
2020/greening-governmenit-commitments-2016-10-2020 ‘

Page 83"



7.3.

8.2.
8.3,

9.2,

9.3.

9.4.

. 9.5.

The Grant may not be used to purchase capital items or Assets,

Eligible and Ineligible Expenditure

Eligible Expenditure is-expenditure incurred by the Recipient in
managing, administering and delivering the Purpose. The Recipient
may not use the Grant for any activities other than those required to
achieve the Purpose and as more fully described in Schedule 1, or as
approved in writing by the Authority.

Annex E describes in more detajl examples of ineligible Expenditure.

“The following costs/payments will be classified as Eligible

Expenditure if incurred in delivering the Purpose:

a. fees charged or to be charged to the Recipient by the external
auditors/accountants for reporting/certifying that the Grant paid
was applied for its intended purposes, for example an

" Independent Assurance Statement,

b. giving evidence to Parliamentary Select Committees i

connection with the Purpose or this Grant Agreement,

¢. attending meetings with goevernment ministers or civil sefrvants to
discuss the progress of a taxpayer funded grant scheme, ‘

Audit and inspection

The Recipient shall comply with the international accounting
standards. ' -

The Recipient shall ensure thaf the Grant falls within the scope of
audit as part of the Recipient's annual internal and external audit-
programme. o

The value and purpose of the Grant shall be identified separately in
the Recipient’s audited accounts {or the notes thereto). Should the
Recipient's annual turnover fall below the thrashold that is the
minimum legal requirement for formal external audit (currentiy £10.2
million) then an Independent Assurance Statement must be signed off-
by either an external auditor or an independent qualified accountant.

On request, the Recipient will send the Authority a copy of its, or its
Delivery Partners, latest audited accounts, or a cashflow statement
and forecast. This should be: :

a. ahard copy sent by traditional post, or _
b. an electronic copy sent by email (e.g. a hypetlink to a public

facing website, or PDFs of the document(s)).

The Recipient shall, without charge, permit any officer or officers of
the Authority, agents, external auditing bodies (e.g. European Court
of Auditors, National Audit Office or Public Sector Audit :
Appointments) or their nominees, access to its Staff, premises,
facilities and records and shall, if so required, provide appropriate oral

: 10
- Page 84




9.6.

9.7,

9.8. -

'9.0.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

or written explanations from them, for the purpose of examining,
discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Recipient's fuifilment of the
conditions of this Grant Agreement and the economy, efficiency and
effectiveness with which the Grant has been used. : :

_Further to Clause 9.5, any officer or officers of the Authority, external |

auditing bodies (e.g. European Court of Auditors, National Audit
Office or Public Sector Audit Appointments) or their nominees, may
also examine and take copies of the Recipient's books of account and
such other documents or records as in such officers' view may relate
to the use of Grant. . ' ' -

The Authority shall endeavour, but is not ob!iged,.to”provide due
notice of its intent to- undertake the activities described in Clauses 95 -
and 9.6. ' ‘

The Recipient agrees to make available immediately to the Authority,

-~ free of charge, and whenever requested, copies of audit reports

obtained by the Recipient in relation to the Purpose or other aspect of
the Grant Agreement. '

In all cases, the Recipient shall supply the Authority with all stch-
financial information, as is reasonably requested from time-to-time, on
an open book basis. :

Lawful conduct, equal opportunities, use of volunteers and
activities funded by the Grant : _ :

The Recipient shall ensure that all reasonable steps have been taken
to ensure that it and any Delivery Partner acting on its behalf
complies with all applicable Laws and shall possess all the necessary
qualifications, licences, permits, skills and experience to discharge

" their responsibilities effectively, safely and in conformance with any

applicable Law for the time being in force (so far as binding on the
Recipient and/or the Delivery Partner),

The Recipient shall ensure that it, and any Delivery Partner, has
relevant organisational policies in place to deliver the Purpose. These
should cover, but not be limited to: whistleblowing; safeguarding;
diversity and equality; environmental; data protection; and information
security, and shall remain current for the duration of the Funding
Pariod -and be reviewed regulariy by appropriately senior Staff and
confirmed by the board or Trustee(s). All Staff must be aware of these
policies and of how to raise any concerns.

The Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that it and
anyone acting on its behalf do not bring the Authority or the grant into
disrepute for instance by reason of prejudicing the Purpose and/or
being contrary to the interests of the Authority.

In particular, the Authority has a zero-tolerance approach towards
sexual exploitation, abuse and harassment. The Recipient will
immediately contact the Grant Sponsor to report any credible
suspicions, or actual incidents, of sexual exploitation, abuse or

- 11
Page 85 ‘



10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

10.9.

11.
11.1.

11.2.

harassment related to this Grant Agreement or which would be of
significant impact to the Authority ot other Crown Body. For example,
any event that affects the governance or culture of the Recipient,
such as those related to seniormanagement, must be reported.

Any event notified to the Autherity-under Clauses 10.3 and/for 10 4
may be investigated by the Authority or a duly nominated
representative or agent. The Recipient will fully co-operate with any
investigation. '

The Recipient shall comply fully with the Code of Conduct for
Recipients of Government General Grants (the 'Code of Conduct))2. It
will ensure that Staff are made aware of their obligations and -
undertake their duties when delivering the Purpose in a manner
consistent with the principles outlined.in the Gode.of Conduct,

Before entering into.any agreement with a Third Party offering
Supplementary Funding towards delivery of the Purpose, the
Recipient must: ' o

a. ensure that robt_ist‘ due diligence pi”ocesse's '(similar to that set out

‘in Clause 12.2), regarding both the prospective donor and the
source of the monies, ha\_fe been undertaken, and

b. inform the Authority of these details including, but not necessarily

limited to, the source, value, scope, nature and any conditions of
the Supplementary Funding. .

" Following receipt of information in accordance with Clause 10.7, the

Authority shall, at its sole discretion, confirm in writing whether the .

- use of the Suppiementaty:Fuqdi_ng for the Purpose is acceptable to it,

in instances where the Authority does not agree the Supplementary
Funding can be used, for example by reason of prejudicing or

*-conflicting with the Purpose and/or being contrary to the interests of

the Authority, the Recipient must confirm in-writing (i) what it intends
to do with the Supplementary Funding, and (i) that it will not use the
Supplementary Funding to deliver the Purpose. '

The Recipient agrees and accepts that it may become ineligible for
grant support and be required to repay all or part of the Grant — not
limited to any Unspent Monies — if it engages in tax evasion or
aggressive tax avoidance in the opinion of HMRC.

Conflict of interest and financial or other frre.gu!arities

The Recipient and its Staff shall take all reasonable steps to avoid
any actual or perceived bias or conflicts of interest in respect of the
Grant or the Purpose. -

Neither the Recip’i_eht nor its Delivery Partners shall engage in any
personal, business or professional activity which conflicts or could

- conflict with any-obligations in relation to the Agreement.

2 https://www.qov.uqu_overnment/pubIicationslsupplier-code-of—conduct

- : 12
Page 86 ‘




113

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

N O

12.
12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

The Recipient must set up formal procedures to require all Staff to
avoid any potential conflict of interest and to declare any personal or
financial interest in any matter concerning the Recipient's activities
and to be excluded from any discussion or decision-making relating to
the matter concernad, ' :

If the Recipient has any grounds for suspecting financial irregularity in
the use of any Grant paid under this Grant Agreement, it must notify
the Authority immediately, explain what steps are being taken to
investigate the suspicion, and keep the Authority informed about the

“progress of the investigation,

For the:purposes of Clause 11.4, “financial irregularity” includes (but
is not limited to) potential fraud or other impropriety, mismanagement,

. bribery, corruption and the use of the Grant for purposes other than

those stipulated by the Authority in this Grant Agreement.

The;Recipient'agrees that it will hot apply for or obtain, and will
assure that any Beneficiary, or Delivery Partner, is not in receipt of or
does not apply for or themselves obtain, Duplicate Funding. The

Authority may refer the Recipient, Beneficiary or a Delivery Partner to

the police should it dishonestly and intentionally obtain Duplicate
Funding to deliver the Purpose. ‘ :

The Recipient shall not offer or give, or agree to give, to the Authority

or any other public body or any person em ployed by or on behalf of

the Authotity or any other public body any gift or consideration of any
kind as an inducement or reward for doing, refraining from doing, or

- for having done or refrained from doing, any act in relation to the

obtaining or execution of the Grant Agreement or any other contract
with the Authority or any other public body, or for showing of
refraining from showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation.
to the Grant Agreement or any such contract. '

Procurement procedures
In procuring any works, goods or services using the Grant the
Recipient must secure best value for money. :

The Recipient shall adopt such policies and practices that are
reasonably required in order to demonstrate that all purchases
comply in all material aspects with all relevant UK legislation on public
procurement, for example, by applying principles of non-
discrimination and equal treatment, transparency, mutual recognition
and proportionality. '

Prior to the award of-onward funding or a contract or other legal form
of agreement to a Delivery Partner, the Recipient shall ensure that it
carries out a thorough and proportionate documented due diligence

‘process to understand an arganisations’ financial status, viability and

capability; technical skills and capacity; operational and commercial
processes and procedures; background and history (fraud risk,

13
Page 87 ,



12.4,

12.5.

money laundetring, terrorism, modem slavery etc); and ensure the
payment is not double funding. '

When procuring or entering into an arrangenient with a Delivery
Partner, the Recipient shall be mindful of the intent, and apply the
spirit, of the: - \ ‘

a.  Government Fuhctiona! Standérd for General Grants?, and
b.  Campact in all its dealings with Civil Society Organisations.
Where the Recipient enters into a contract (or any other form of

- agreement) with a Delivery Partner for the provision of any part of the
- Purpose, the Recipient shall ensure that such terms are included.in

12.6.

the agreement which: .
a.  requires the Recipient to pay all sums due to the Délivery

Partner within a specified period not exceeding thirty (30)°
Calendar Days from the date of receipt of a validated invoice or

claim request as defined by the terms of the agreement,

b.  enable the Recipient to recover unspent or misused funds in
accordance with this Grant Agreement, o

ensure that all funded activities are fully reported on,

comply with all the Authority’s positions and policies referred to
in this Grant Agreement, and '

€. provide the Authority with an Up-to-date, unredacted, Signed
copy of any agreement, including any amendments, entered into
upon request. A

Onward payment of the-Grant fo Bénéficiaries-a_nd. the use of Delivery
Partners shall not relieve the Recipient of any of its obligations under

~ this Grant Agreemerit, including any obligations to repay the Grant,

12.7.

12.8.

12.9.

- 12.10.

The Recipient shall remain responsible at all times for paying the -

Delivery Partner. The Authority shall have no responsibility for paying |

a Delivery Partner's invoice or claim request,

If the Authority becomes aware that the Recipient has failed to pay a
Delivery Partner's undisputed invoice or Beneficiary's claim request

within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receipt, the Authority shall be

entitled to publish the details of the late Or non-payment (including on

* government websites and in the press).

Prior to Commencement, the Recipient shall provide the Authority
with a list of all identified Delivery Partners and must thereafter
provide written notification in advance of any planned changes to this
list whether additions, removals or replacements of Delivery Partners,

Subject to the terms of this Grant Agreement, if the Recipient follows
a single tender or other direct award procedure to procure a Delivery
Partner it must provide and document a full justification that canbe
robustly defended and maintain the relevant documentation on file.

3 https:l/ww.qov.uquovernmentlpubIications!qrants—'standards

14

Page 88



1211,

13. .
13.1.

“14.
141.

Such justification may apply in exceptional circumstances for example
where: : :

a. the requirement can demonstrably be met only by proprietary or
specialist equipment,’ ‘ '

h. the requireméht can demonstrably be met only by a.single |
available entity with extremely niche skills, or

¢. there are simply no.alternative sources of supply.

The_ Recipient shall not carry out any activities that-could be
constituted as state-aided and nor shali it pay illegal State Aid to any

‘organisation or rdividualt, The Recipient will maintain appropriate

records of its compliance with the state-aid Law requirements.

Insurance coverage

The Recipient shall ensure that appropriate and adequate insurance -
arrangements (including but not limited to public liability insurance or

- an equivalent policy) are in place to deliver the Purpose and shall

provide evidence of such insurance to the Authority on request. This
includes the Loss or personal injury to persons undertaking activities
in furtherance of the Purpose - ' L

lndemhity

The Authority accepts no liability to the Recipient 6r_ to any Third Party
for any costs, claims, damage or Losses, howsoever they are -
incurred, except to the extent that they arise from personal injury or

_ death which is caused by the Authority’s negligence.

14.2.

14.3,

15.
15.1,

The Recipient agrees to ihdemnify the Authority for any costs, claims,
damages or losses which arise as a result of negligence by the
Recipient or out of any breach by the Recipient of any terms of this

_Grant Agreement.

Neither Party shall be liable for any delays in performing or failure to .
perform any of its obligations under this Grant Agreement if such
delay or failure is caused by a force majeure event, such as acts of
God, civil disorder, military action, acts of terrorism, natural disaster
and ofher circumstances which are beyond the reasonable control of
either Party, but excluding any industrial dispute. In such event,
either Party will give immediate notice in writing to the other Party of .
the existence of such cause or event and of the likelihood of delay.

Intellectual Property Rights and Branding

The Parties -shali retain exciusi\_rify in their own Background
Intellectual Property Rights (IPRs). :

4 https:ﬂwww.qov.uquuidancelslale-aid

Page 89



15.2.

156.3.

15.4.

15.5.

15.6.

18,7,

16.

16.1.

16.2.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Recipién‘c shall own all IPR .

created using the Grant. However, the Recipient shall grant to the
Authority at no cost a non-exclusive irrevocable, royalty-free

- perpetual worldwide license to use and to sub-license the use of any

material or PR created by the Recipjent whether partially or wholly
funded from the Grant for such purposes as the Authority shall deem
appropriate.

Ownership of Third Party software or other IPR necessary to deliver
the Purpose will remain with the relevant Third Party.

- Neither Party shall have the right to use any of the other Party’s

names, logos, branding or trade marks on any of its products or
services without the other Party's prior written consent.

The Recipient shall seek approval from the Authority prior to using the
Authority's logo when acknowledging the Authority's financial support-
of its work. Such acknowledgements (where appropriate oras .
requested by the Authority) shall include the Authority’s name and
logo (or any future name or logo adopted by the Authority) using the
templates provided by the Authority from time to time,

When using the Authdrity s hame and logo, the Recipient will comply
with all reasonable branding gu1delmes as issued by the Authority -

~from time-to-time.

The Authority may freely share ‘ahy ihformation, branding, know-how,
system or process developed using the Grant during the Funding

~ Period and beyond to support similar or subsequent projects.

Breach of,Gfant Conditions

If the Recipient fails to comply with any of the conditions set out in -
this Grant Agreement, .or if any of the events mentioned in Clause
16.2 occur, then, subject to the provisions made in Clauses 16.3 to
16.5, the Authority may reduce or suspend, or withhold Grant
payments, require all or any part of the Grant to be repaid and/or
terminate this Grant Agreement with immediate effect. The Recipient
must repay any amount required to be repaid under this Clause 16
within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receiving any such demand for
repayment. : '

The events referred to in Clause 16.1 are as follows:

a. the Recipient purports to transfer, novate, assign or otherwise

- dispose of the whole or any part of its rights, interests or
obligations arising under this Grant Agreement without the written
‘agreement in advance of the Authority,

b. thé Recipient has not submitted reports, information, orother -
documentation within the required timescales when reasonably
requested by the Authorlty,

c. any information provided in the application for the Grant (ori in a
claim for payment) or in any subsequent supporting

18
Page 90




16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

correspondence is found to be incorrect or incomplete to an
extent which the Authority considers to be material,

d. the Recipient takes inadequate measures to investigate and
resolve any reported irregularity,

e. the Recipient ceases to operate and/or changes the nature of its

operations to an extent which the Authorlty considers to be
'srgmﬂcant or prejudicial,

£ the Recipient is subject to

« a proposal for a voluntary arrangement,

« has a petition for an administration order, or a winding-up
order brought against i,

» passes-a resolution to wind up,.

» makes any composition, arrangement, conveyance or
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or purports fo do
S0, -

s is subject to the appointment of a receiver, administrator or
liquidator - '

g. the Authority conmders that the Recipient has not made
satisfactory progress with its delivery of the Purpose; or

h. the Recipient fails to comply Wlth the prowsmns regardmg State
Aid, ‘ ‘

i. the Recipient (or a Beneficiary or a Delivery Partner) is in receipt
of Duplicate Funding, or .

j. the Recipient receives Supplementary Funding and fails to

comply with its obligations set out Clauses 10.7 and 10.8, or.

k. the Recipient breaches the Code of Conduct and/or fails fo report
an actual or suspected. breach of the Code of Conduct by the
Recipient, its Staff, Delivery Partner(s), Beneficiary or other Third-
Party involved in achieving the Purpose. .

Itis hoped that most difficulties encountered by the Recipient can be
overcome with the advice and support of the Authority. Where the
Authority reasonably believes that the Recipient may be in breach of
this Grant Agreement, the Authority will write to the Recipient giving
particulars of its concern or of such breach.

- The Recipient must act within thirty (30) Calendar Days (or earlier, '

depending on the severity. of the problem) to address the Authorzty 8
concern or remedy the breach, and may consuit the Authority or
agree with it an action plan for resolving the problem. If the Authority
is not satisfied with the steps taken by the Recipient to address its
concern or remedy the breach, the Authority may exercise all or any
of its rights under this Grant Agreement, |

The Authority will act reasonably and proportlonateiy (takmg account
of all of the circumstances) when exercising its rights under this Grant

17
Page 91 '



16.6.

17.

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

175

17.6.

17.7.

Agreement.

On termination of this Grant Agreement for any reason, the Recipient
(as soon as reasonably practicably) shall return to the Authority any
Assetls or property or Unspent Monies (unless the Authority gives its _
written consent to their retention) then in its possession in connection
with this Grant Agreement. ' S

Fund'in.g Period and Termination including Conse’quences

The Authority does not commit to renew or continue financial support
to the Recipient beyond the final Funding Period. . '

Subject to Clauses . 16.3 to 16.5, the Authority rhay terminate this
Grant Agreement forthwith by serving a written notice on the
Recipient if the Recipient is in material breach of its obligations

~ arising from the Grant Agreement by:

a. . using any part of the Grant for a pUrpoée other than the Purpose,

b. nﬁaking any false, incorrect or misleading statement in order to
obtain this Grant or has been involved in-any illegal activity or
Improper act in its administration,

C. faiiing_to comply with any obligation arising from the Grant _
Agreement, or

d. failing to remedy any breach of this Grant Agreemeht.

The Recipient may terminate this Grant Agreement forthwith by
serving a notice on the Authority in writing if it has made a writfen
request for payment of a sum properly due (i.e. undisputed and
validated) to it under this Grant Agreement and the Authority has
failed to make payment of that sum within thirty (30) Calendar Days of
receiving the request. ' :

thwithstanding Clauses 17.2 and 17.3, this Grant Agreement may
be terminated by either Party giving the other at least thres (3)

“Months (or other agreed time periad) notice in writing.

With reference to Clause 17.3, and in the event that the Authority

- exercises its right to give notice of termination under Clause 17.4, the

Authority shall reimburse the Recipient for any commitments,
liabilities or Eligible Expenditure which represent an unavoidable
direct Loss to the Recipient by reason of the termination of the Grant
Agreement, provided that the Recipient takes all reasonable steps to
mitigate such Loss. : - :

In such an event, the Recipient shall submit a fully itemised and
costed list of unavoidable direct Losses which it would seek to
recover from the Authority, with supporting evidence, of such losses
reasonably and actually incurred by the Recipient as a result of a
termination by the Authority in accordance with Clause 17.5.

Any payment dye under Clauses 17.5 and 17.6 will be made withih
thirty (30) Calendar Days from receipt of a correctly submitted and

18"
-Page 92




verified invoice(s) but ',in any case upon cornpletion to the 'Authority’s
satisfaction, and at the Recipient's sole cost, of any reasonable

~ investigation required by the Authority of the costs detailed within the
invoice(s). The Authority agrees that any such investigation shall be

" carried out as soon as reasonably practicable.

17.8.

17:8.

The right to reimbursement shall be excluded if termination of the
Grant Agreement is enacted under the provisions set out in Clause

17.2 above or where the Recipient has exercised its right to give

notice of termination under Clause 17.4. In such instances the
Recipient shall return ali Unspent Monies to the Authority.

The Authority may at any time serve notice upon the Recipient
requiring it to cease using a particular Delivery Partner, the Authority

~ will only do so where it has reasonable grounds to object to the

17.10,

17.11.

17.12.

18.
18.1.

18.2.

.continued use of such a Delivery Partner. Any such notice will be

cognisant of the terms of Recipient's legally binding agreement and,
where appropriate, the need for an alternative.to be p_rovided.

Although the Authority does not seek to exercise detailed control of

the Recipient’s activities, it must ensure that public money is '
protected and value for money achieved. Consequently, the Recipient
shall, in accordance with this Grant Agreement, promptly provide '
such assistance and comply with such tirmetable as the Authority may
teasonably require for the purpose of ensuring a smooth transfer of
responsibility upon the expiry or other termination of the Grant
Agreement. The Authority wiil look to the Recipient to provide such
assistance as approptiate prior to the expiry or other termination of

the Purpose. ' o '

Such assistance may include the delivery of documents and data in
the possession or control of the Recipient which relate to the activities
funded by the Grant.

Any termination of this Grant Agreement will be without prejudice to
any other rights or remedies of the Parties under this Grant
Agreement or at law and wil not affect any accrued rights or liabilities

* of the Parties at the date of termination.

Amendments to the Grant Agreemeh{

The Authority shall have the right to amend the Grant Agreement at
any time provided that such amendment as required is related in
nature to the Purpose-and does not impose an additional cost or
other material burden upon the Recipient. The Authority will _
endeavour to provide thirty (30) Calendar Days’ written notice of any
such amendment so required, i

The Authority may on not less than thirty (30) Calendar Days’ notice
to the Recipient amend this Grant Agreement to ensure that it
complies with any guidance issued by the Information:
Commissioner's Office.

19
Page 93



18.3.

18.4.

18.5.

18.6.

19.

9.1,

19.2.

19.3.

194

19.5.

20.

20.1.

20.2.

Additionally, either Party may request in writing changes to the Grant
Agreement during the Funding Period.

If the Parties cannot agree on the content of a change initiated under
Clause 18.3 then the proposed change(s) will be withdrawn. In ali

events the Authority shall hoid the final right of rejection. _
- Any amendments to this Grant Agreement and/for the Grant Fundmg

Letter shall;

a. only be valid if they are documented using a Grant Variation
Notice form duly signed by an Authorised Representative of both
Parties, and

b.  be recorded in Annex F.

The Grant Agreement itself shall be updated and re-issued beafing
the next sequential version control reference.

Confidentiality

Nothing in this Clause 19 applies to information which is already in |
the public domain or the possession of the Recipient other than by
reason of breach of this Clause 19.

The Recipient undertakes to keep confidential and not to disclose and
to procure that its Staff keep confidential and do not disclose any
information of a sensitive nature Wthh it has obtained by reason of
this Grant Agreement.

The Recipient shall not use any information which it has obtained as
a result of delivering the Purpose (including, without limitation, any
information relating to any Beneficiary) in any way which is inaccurate
or misleading. .

The Recipient shall ensure that when required any mformatson of a
sensitive nature, howsoever held, is securely disposed of in
accordance with the Authority's dlrecttons If additional budget is
required, the Recipient will fiaise with the Authority to agree costs in
wrltmg in advance of committing expenditure.

' The provisions of this Clause 19 shall survive the termination of this
Grant Agreement however that ocours.

Data Protectlon Data Sharing, Information Acts, Publicity and
Transparency

The Recipient acknowledges that grant agreements issued by Grown
Bodies may be published on a public facing website and that the
Author:ty shall disclose payments made against this Grant Agreement
in accordance with the UK Gavernment’s commitment to eﬁ;czency,

_ transparency and accountability.

Where applicable, the Recipient and the Authority are required to
comply at all times with its respective obligations under the '

20

Page 94




20.3. -

20.4.

20.5.

20.6.

20.7.

208

Information Acts, any subordinate legislation made and any guidance
issued by the Information Commissioner. -

Where appropriate, the Recipiént shall ensure that it has adequate
provisions and controls In place to manage: o

a. the processing of data shared between itself and any Delivery
Partner and/or Beneficiary {(and vice versa), and

b. éompiiance with its obligations arising from the Data Protection
Legislation. _ ‘

Nothing in Clause 19 (Confidentiality) shall prevent the Authority from
sharing information obtained in relation to the Recipient with any
Crown Body, provided that in disclosing information the Authority
discloses only the information which is necessary for the purpose
concerned. and requests that the information is treated in confidence
and that a confidentiality undertaking is given where appropriate.

The Recipient hereby acknowledges that a Crown Body receiving
such information may further disclose the information to other Crown
Bodies on the basis that the information is confidential and is not to
be disclosed to a Third Party which is not a Crown Body.

The Authority may also disclose any information obtained from and
about the Recipient for the purpose of the examination and
certification of the Authority’s accounts; or pursuant to section 6(1) of
Nationa! Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness
with which the Authority has used its resources.

The Recipient agrees to assist and cooperate with the Authority to
enable the Authority to comply with its obligations under the
Information Acts whenever a request is made for information which
relates to or arises out of this Grant Agreement.

The Authority will take reasonable steps to notify the Recipient of a
request for information to the extent that it is permissible and

* reasonably practical to do so. The Authority may also, but is not:

20.9.

20.10.

required to, consult with the Recipient regarding any requests for
information and take account of any comments made by the
Recipient to determine any matters which either Party may consider
as Commersially Sensitive Information or be otherwise exempt:. This
will inform the Authority’s decision regarding any redactions or ‘
exemptions for which the Authority shall, at its absolute discretion and
based on its own legal obligations, retain the final decision.

The Parties agree and acknowledge that, except for any information
which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of
the Information Acts, the content of the Agreement and the Purpose
is not confidential. ‘ :

The Recipient will comply with all reasonable requests from the
Authority to facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs -
and case studies or any other such material that will assist the
Authority in publicising the Purpose.

21
Page 95



21.
211

21.2.

thices

All notices, invoices and other communications relating to this Grant
Agreement shall be in writing and in English and shall be served by a

" Party on the other Party at its address shown at the head of this
" Grant Agreement.

Notices delivered hereunder sha‘lf be deemed fo be delivered if:
a. delivered by hand, upon receipt,

b. sentbhy pré-paid registered first-class post (providing it is not
- returned as undelivered to the sender), two (2) Working Days
after posting, '

¢. sent by electronic mail, on the date of delivery except when an-
electronic mail is sent on a day which is not a Working Day or
after 3:00pm on a Working Day, the electronic mail shall be
deemed to have been received on the next Working Day.

22. Contract (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

22.1.

No person who is not a Party to this Grant Agreement shall have the
right to enforce any its terms. '

23. Dispute Resolution

231,

23.2.

23.3.

23.4.

The Parties shall attempt in good faith to negotiate an amicable
seltlement to any dispute between them arising out of or in |

- connection with this Grant Agreement and such efforts shall involve
the escalation of the dispute from the Grant Sponsor and Project
Manager to an appropriately senior representative of each Party.

All disputes and complaints (except for those which relate to the
Authority's right to withhold funds or terminate this Grant
Agreement) shall, in the first instance be referred to the Project
Manager and the Grant Sponsor,

Should the dispute or complaint remain unresolved within fifteen -
(15) Working Days of the matter first being referred to the individuals
named in Clause 23.2, either Party may refer the matter to the
Parties’ nominated senior representatives with an instruction to
attempt to resolve the matter by agreement within twenty (20)
Working Days, or such other period as may be mutually agreed by
the Authority and the Recipient.

If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Parties within the period
agreed in accordance with Clause 23.3, the dispute may by
agreement between the Parties be referred to a neutral adviser or
mediator (the "Mediator”) chosen by agreement between the
Parties. All negotiations connected with the dispute shall be

- conducted in confidence and without prejudice to the rights of the

Parties in any further proceedings.

22
Page 96




23.5. . Ifthe Parties fail to appaint a Mediator within one (1) Month, or fail to
enter into a written agreement resolving the dispute within one (D
Month of the Mediator being appointed, then either Party may
exercise any remedy it has under applicable Law.

24. .Governing Law

24.1. This Grant Agreement shall be subject to and construed in
" accordance with English Law and subject to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the courts of England and Wales. This does not fimit the Authority’s
right to commence legal proceedings in any other court of competent
jurisdiction, including concurrent proceedings.

Home Office
Police Strategy arid Reform Unit
August 2019

' 23
‘Page 97



ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT ~ ‘
Derbyshire County Council accepts the offer of the Grant contained in
this Grant Agreement and agrees to comply with the terms and
conditions of the Grant on which the offer is made. :

On behalf of Derbyshire Gounty Council:

Project Manager

/nfl.“.
o

Senior Finance Offi

Signature; -

Name: Jidnod kP §

Dafe: 266 T e 2017 |
Position: D)L?\)j | D\W\wa u\i WA j\t{\)h\_() -

cer (if different to above)

Signature: . Cm
Name: MA/\[,:}A [T
Date: 25 fa (14
| Position: Ein Aned W povpcol
‘Bank details for Grant payment
Bank name; LLEYDS Banik
Branchname: | oy svaceg Civt OCECE
Sort code:: B~ 0 Q . .
Account pame: DeERHIMMEE COLNTY CounQIL
Account number: OAODDI D) ' o
Address: FO BOX TR Aauey DRE FIU ggggm
Post code: MED OLs: ' 1

Signed on behalf of the Authority:

Name: Kérer ol . QoSeerf
Date: 2o |al 1 | '

Position:

HOME OFFICE US

Ass vaboek TDurchor 9 Logp ok

E:

Iding Unit:

Payment instructions per Grant Ho

.code (1

00

1202013 00000000

01

541021

SCHEDULE 1 - THE PURPOSE

| 24
Page 98

P

110404




"THE PROJECT

1.1

This Schedule 1 describes the outcomes and impacts the Authority is
seeking to achieve through this Grant funding. The Authority is providing
the Grant to enable the Recipient to maintain a Police and Crime Panel

for the Derbyshire Constabulary police area.

BACKGROUND

1.2

1.3

1.4

158

The maintehance of a Police and Crime Pane_l in accord‘an‘ce with the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Regulations
made under it. ' '

The functions and. responsibilities of Police and Crime Panels (PCPs)in
England and Wales. are set out in the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011. PCPs were introduced to scrutinise the actions
and decisions of police and crime commissioners, and provide support
and challenge to the commissioner in the exercise of their functions.
They focus their attention on key strategic actions and decisions taken
by the commissioner, including whether they have achieved the
objectives set out in their police and crime plan, considered the relevant

- priorities of their community safety partners and consulted appropriately

with the public. . .

This Grant is paid to the Recipient in exercise of the power conferred
upon the Secretary of State for the Home Department under section 31
of the Local Government Act 2003 to provide financial support to a local
authority in England or Wales.. s ’

This Grant Agreement provides a broad well defined framework in which
the Recipient may exercise independent discretion. ' '

KEY DELIVERABLES

1.6

That there is a Police and Crime Panel for the police area able to carry
out its scrutiny functions and responsibilities as set out in the Police
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011,

KEY ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1.7

1.8

The Authority will nominate a Grant Sponsor who will work with the
Recipient's Project Manager to monitor the delivery of the agreed
Purpose and act as the principal point of contact. Their name and
contact details are recorded in Annex C.

The Recipient will nominate a Project Manager who shall have

responsibility for ensuring delivery of the Purpose to achieve -the
outcomes and impagcts. They shall act as the Authority’s principal point
of contact, and their details shall be recorded in An.nex C.

25
Page 99



INDICATIVE EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN

1.9 The total Grant Amount payable by the Authority to the Recipient under

the terms of this Grant Agreement shall not be more than sixty seven
thousands, one hundred pounds (£67,100) for financial year 2019/20.

110 The Grant will be paid ih accordance with the profile described in

Schedule 2 and is intended fo reimburse Eligible Expenditure incurred
paying for the activities requsred to achieve the outcomes described in

this Schedule 1.

'1.11 The Grant has been bafc&,zlated using the following formula:

Administration

TOTAL ELIGIBLE EXPEND]TURE
(A+B+C) -

A £53,300
B Expenses (up to £920 per member) | £1 3,800
c Translation fees Nil

D

£67,100 -

1.13 Recipients are free to transfer'any underspend in member expenses (B)
to pay for additional administration costs (A). The total grant amount (D)

cannot be exceeded.

-Page 100

26




_.I (g xeUUY) L0} JUSWIAEIS UINPNG pejsldwos y -
‘ (lesk - .
-pUS) ULIC) 1senbal WIElD V¥ XeUly poedwos y - wiep Jesf-pug | . - azoz Apr ie z 0z/6L02

‘¢ SINPBYOS Ul PelIEIep - | .
se spcded souruloped pue [erousuy poleldwoln - - _ A ‘
" SNPaUOS Ul Pajielop se jsedslo) pajeiduod - 1sESRI04 WNINO _ . T OZOZ UdIBN 9 - 0Z/610¢
(;eaf-plwl) uLI0} Jsenbal WiE V Xauly pejeldwmos - T a .

pue ‘sdlued sy} Aq pesuioUine
"/ paubis Aereudoldde woewsalby aip jo Adoo -

, : ‘2 'suoiipuo
puUE SULIS] 8y} jO |°g @SnBelD WM SouEpIoo0E U]

LUIB[o 1BSA-DIN 6l0TIAOPO LE| - b 02/6102

-spodal Suuojuouwl pue [elousul Aioyoegsies jo 1dedal .

pue 'g 8snEg|D Ul N0 Jes SUOHIPUOD 8L IO JuSWyny e

o : . . | s1enopied W quewealby juels Sy} Woy Bursile suonebiqo yim
souejduioo o} ﬁmﬁ:w aq (1M JuswAed imojeq ige] 8y} U 1no 1es 3NpoyYos SUL Yim soueploode Ul papjiugns o4 Isnw SUNEID WBID

asoding ay3 BulieAl@p 10} SNP3YIS juswifed aApeEdIpU|
FINAaAHOS ONILHOdTY ONV ININAVd — ¢ IINGIHOS

Page 101




SCHEDULE 3 —IN-YEAR MONITORIN;G INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTORS

3.1 The Critical Success Factors (CSFs) to be monitored and reported on
are; , o "~

a. the number of pubiic meetings held,

b. scrutiny documents and pljbficationé produced, including the
~ Panel's annual report, :

REPORTING

3.2 The Recipient shall putin place procedures to monitor and track
spending, including committed spend, against agreed budgets and
notify the Authority of any variances.

3.3 The Recipient shall report against Clause 3.2 highiighting how value
for money (e.g. benefits, savings, efficiencies etc.) is being achieved..
Reports are to be provided to the Authority alongside the Annex A
form.

3.4 eports should also contain g financial statement detailing how the

against actuals.

3.5 Reports and forecasts should be sentto
pgc’partnersenquiries@homeoﬁice.qov.uk by the agreed dates in -
Schedule 2.

~ Progress Reporting

3.8°  insupport of Annex A (Grant Claim) submissions at mid- and end-
year points, the Recipient shall provide:

a.  reports detailing progress against critical success factors in
achieving outcomes and targets, and highlight how value for
money (e.g. benefits, savings, efficiencies etc.) is being
achieved. ‘ ' '

b.  financial statements highlighting any significant financia|
variances, underspend or overspend, and any Supplementary
Funding. - ~

28
Page 102

R
Grant has been spent, an ongoing reconciliation of forecast position



3.7

3.8

Ad Hoc Reporting

Any Critical Incidents oF matters arising the outcome of gonsequence
of which is likely to result in: ' ‘

4 serious harm to any individual; or
b, significant community impact; or '

¢ significant impact on public confidence in the Authority, including

the provision of the Purpose

must be reported to the Authority within one (1) Calendar Day. The
Partner must provide a follow up report within three (3) Calendar Days

o the Authority on how the matter has been resolved or whether the
Authority will need to intervene. : '

Additionally, the Recipient will notify the Authority as soon as

" yeasonably practical of:

a. any actual or potential failure to comply with any of its
obligations under the Grant Agreement, which includes those
caused by any administrative, financial o managerial difficutties,
of . .

b, actual or potential variations to the Eligible Exp'enditure set out
' in Schedule 1 of these Conditions and/or any event which
materially affects the continued accuracy of such information.

ANNUAL REVIEW

3.9

3.10

3

In addition to any ongoing reporting, monitoring or evaluation, the
Authority will review the Purpose of the Grant annually and will take
into account the Recipient's achievements (during the Funding
Period) as measured against the C8Fs. As pait of the annual review
the Authority will have regard to the reports produced by the
Recipient. ‘

Each annual review will result in the Authori{y méking, a
recommendation that the: -

a. Purpose and Agreement continue in line with existing ptans; or

b. Eligible Expenditure payable for the subsequent Funding Period
should be revised (up or down); or

¢. CSFs should be re-defined and agreed; or

d.  Agreement should be terminated.

The Recipient may make representations to the Authority regarding
any recommendations made in accordance with this provision, '
however, the Authority shall not be obliged to take such ‘
representations into account when making its recommendation and
any recommendation will be final and at the Authority's absolute
discretion.

- Page 103 2



3.7

3.8

Ad Hoc Reporting

Any Critical Incidents or matters arising the outcome or cansequence
of which is likely to result in: '

a.  serious harm to any individual; or
b.  significant community impact; or -

- ¢ significant impact on public confidence in the Authority, including

the provision of the Purpose

must be reported to the Authority within one (1) Calendar Day. The |

Partner must provide a follow up report within three (3) Calendar Days

~ to the Authority on how the matter has been resolved or whether the

Authority will need to intervene. :

~ Additionally, the Recipient will notify the Authority as soon as

reasonably practical of;

a. any actual or potential failure to comply with any of its
' obligations under the Grant Agreement, which includes those
caused by any administrative, financial or managerial difficulties;
or . .

b. actual or potential variations to the Eligible Expenditure set out
: in Schedule 1 of these Conditions and/or any event which
materially affects the continued accuracy of such information.

ANNUAL REVIEW

3.9

3.10

3.1

In addition to any ongoing reporting, monitoring or evaluation, the
Authority will review the Purpose of the Grant annually and will take
into account the Recipient’s achievements (during the Funding
Period) as measured against the CSFs. As part of the annual review
the Authority will have regard to the reports produced by the
Recipient. _

- Each annual review will result in the Authorify méking a
recommendation that the: .

a. Purpose and Agreement continue in line with existing plans; or

b:  Eligible Expenditure payable for the subsequent Funding Period
should be revised (up or down); or

¢.  GSFs should be re-defined and agreed: or
d.  Agreement should be terminated.

The Recipient may make representations to the Authority regarding -
any recommendations made in accordance with this provision, '
however, the Authority shall not be obliged to take such '
representations into account when making its recommendation and
any recommendation will be final and at the Authority's absolute
discretion.

29
Page 104



SCHEDULE 3 -

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTORS

3.1

'IN-YEAR MON]TORINVG INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

The Critical Success Factors (CSFs) to be monltored and reported on

are:
a. the number of public meetings held,

b.  scrutiny documents and pub!icatione produced, including -the

~ Panel’s annual report,

R engagement with-the work of the Panel by members of the public

and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire

Constabiilary. ™

REPORTING

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6°

The Recipient shall put in place procedures to monitor and track
spending, including committed spend, against agreed budgets and
notify the Authority of any variances.

The Recipient shall report against Clause 3.2 highlighting how value
for money (e.g. benefits, savings, efficiencies etc.) is being achieved.

Reporis are to be provnded to the Authority alongside the Annex A
form.

‘Reports ‘should also contain a financial statement detailing how the

Grant has beén spent, an ongoing reconciliation of forecast position

against actuals.

Reports and forecasts shouid be sentto .
pcepartnersenquiries@homeoffice. gov.uk by the agreed dates in.
Schedule 2.

- Progress Reporting

In support of Annex A (Grant Claim) submissions at mid- and end-
year points, the Recipient shall provide: -

a. reports detailing progress against critical success factors in
achieving outcomes and targets, and highlight how value for
money (e.9. beneflts savings, efficiencies etc.) is being
achieved.

b. financial statem'ente highlighting any significant financial '
variances, underspend or overspend and any Supplementary
Funding.

Page 105

28




SCHEDULE 4 — OUTTURN FORECAST

To be returned to the autho::ity'by 6th March' 2020 to remain eligible for the | '
payment covering the second half of the financial year. Every effort should be
made to ensure this forecast is accurate and submitted by the date indicated:

incurred to date

Forecast to 31st
March 2020

Total

| Administration
costs

Members
expenses

Translation costs
(if applicable)

Total

Page 106

30




SCHEDULE 5 — DATA SHAﬁmG PROTOCOL (DSP)

NOT USED

SCHEDULE 6 — GENERAL DATA PROTECTIO& REGULATION (GDPR)
NOT USED |

 SCHEDULE 7 - AID DIVERSION

NOT UUSED

‘Page 107

3



ANNEX A —~ GRANT CLAIM FORM

Recipient: Grant Stream:

Derbyshire County Council

Period ' : ' Resource (£) Capital (£)
From: _ . : . ' -

Ta:

Police and Crime FPanels

(1) Total funding received for this financial ’ N/A ‘
year - : :
(2a) Actual expenditure in this period _ N/A
{To be supported by a breakdown of
-expenditure against the cost breakdown
detailed in Schedule 1).
(2b) Forecast expenditure in the period N/A
(To be used for the final claim of the year in . :
instances where Schedule 2 sets out that -
the final payment request must be received : ‘
in advance of 31 March {end of the financial : : S _
ear). . ' .
1(3) Funding request for this period N/A _
(4) Total funding received and requested N/A
1+3)

_%_M—%M%

MONITORING INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS :
Where monitoring information, as set out in Schedule 3, is a reguirement for
the period the payment is requested for, please confirm what has heen
attached to this payment request form. - :

,

e ——

32

Page 108



FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

| certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that:
a) The information provided is correct, and no Duplicate Funding has
been received in respect-of this Eligible Expenditure Statement,

b) The expenditure has heen incurred only for the purposes set out in the
Grant Agreement for the specified Grant stream. :

ign off:

: 33
Page 109




ANNEX B
OUTTURN STATEMENT - APRIL 2019 TO MARCH 2020

The Qutturmn Statement should be corhplete_d and certified by the Finance
Officer and returned to the Authority in accordance with Clause 6.8,

Grant Recipient: Grant Stream:

Derbyshire County Council Police and Crime Panels _
Actual Actual |
Resource Capital
Expenditure | Expenditure
(£) £)

on for variance: ' : o S

Reas

_ 34
‘Page 110 '




FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATION
| certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that: |

a) The information provided is correct; and no other specific Exchequer .
grants, other grants or contributions have been or will be payable for
the expenditure in respect of the Grant Amount being claimed,

b) The expenditure has been incurred only for the purposes set out in the
Grant Agreement for the above Grant stream.

ﬂome Office sign off:

35
Page 111 -



g€

‘ - D3I $3Q

A AoB-auysAquep@oe ol - LCEBES BZOL0 | >oojlew ey Aunon . 1y Aoy
| o o3 vaq| , |

A ach-aiiysAqiop@iieq-aiep 95/8€G 62910 . oouep ‘eH Aunog L lsbeue 108014 Iteg aureis

-SSAlelUssaldal posuoyIng se pejeubisep yeg s jusidiosy sy 30 I8l JusLino sy aie Buimoljoy sy |

[ T .
I T

_ | . 340% diMS uopuo JoBIUOn

x:.>om.®oEomEoc@mmt_nccmﬂmctmnooa £4/85€0/020 . =TT _EmchmE z sseulshg loiAe] jsnueg
| o | 40y diMs uopuoy |

x:.>om.moEomEm:@wmt_zUcmwl_w:tmmooa LI0ESE0.020 | - o049 weysiep z losuodg juein Ay ualiner

-SeAjejuessides pesuoyine se psjeubissp yers s Ayoyymy SU3 10181 JusLIND B s Bummoyjoy ay |

SIAILVINISIHATY G3ISRIOHINY — 9 szz<

Page 112



. ANNEX D — DELIVERY PROPOSAL

NOT USED (DIRECT AWARD)

Page 113

37



ANNEX E — LIMITATIONS ON FUNDING USE AND INELIGIBLE
EXPENDITURE ' ' )

1.1 The Recipient shall not use the Grant to engage as a Delivery Partner,
10r otherwise engage with Third Parties known to demonstrate vocal
or active opposition to fundamental British values®, including
democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and
tolerance of different faiths and beliefs. This includes those who make
extremist calls for the death of members of our armed forces, . whether
in this country or overseas. :

1.2 The Grant may not be used to

*  payfor lobbying (via an external firm or in-house staff) in order to
undertake activity that intends or attempts to influence Parliament

«  enable one part of government to challenge another on topics
unrelated to the Purpose, or : ‘

. betition the Authority or other Third Parties for additional funding,
or '

+ * pay expenses, such as entértainin‘g, speciﬁca!iy aimed at'exerting
undue infiluence to change government policy.

1.3 No aspect of the activity funded by the Authbn’ty may be party-political
inintention, use, or presentation. | R

T4 The Grant may not be used to support or ‘promote activities of an
exclusively religious nature. This will not include activity designed to
improve inter-faith relationships or working.

1‘.5 The Recipienf is not permitted to charge, apply fees to of require
payment forany activity provided in connection with this Agreement or
otherwise use the Grant to undertake or engage in activities that result

in commercial gain or profit. -~ ,
1.6 The'Recipient shall not make a profit in its use of the Grant. For the

avoidance of doubt, no profit, dividends, bonuses and/or any similar or

equivalent benefit will be paid to Staff,

1.7  To comply with the Cabinet Office’ spend controlf requiréments, the
Recipient; : ' '

e must seek permission from the Authority prior to any proposed
‘expenditure’ on . advertising, .communications, - consultancy or
marketing either in connection with, or using the Grant; and -

% An opposition to fundamental British Values is to go against universal human rights, gender
equality, equality of opportunity, democraey, the rule of law, respect for the rights of different
refligions and beliefs, freedom of speech, ! ‘

g https:l/\ivww‘aov.uquovernmentlcollecﬁons/cabinet—oﬁice-controis

38
Page 114



18

should provide evidence that any marketing, ‘advertising,
communications and consultancy expenditure carried out In
connection with, or using the Grant will deliver measurable
outcomes that meet the government objective to sacure value for
money. '

Other examples of expenditure, which are prohibited, include the

following.

interest payments or service charge payments for finance leases;

gifts;

the writing-off of debts or other liabilities owed to it;

statutory fines, criminal fines or penalties civil penalties, damages
or any associated legal costs;

had debts to related parties; ,
to secure mortgages or loans or other debt-funding;
payments for unfair dismissal or other compensation;

depredciation, amortisation or impairment of assets owned by the
Recipient; B -

‘the acquisition or improvement of Assets by the Recipient.

39
P'age 115



ANNEX F — CHANGE-CONTROL RECORD

Not applicable 16/08/2019

Page 116

16/08/2019

40



GRANT VARIATION NOTICE (TEMPLATE)

Agreement Title

FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE AND CRIME PANELS -

Between

Varlation Nurhber

The Seéretary of State for the Hdme Department, (hereinafter called
“the Authority”) & : ‘

Derbyshire County Council (‘the Recipient”)

Vartation

-Mea'ns the ahxendn’ients to the Grant'Agreement contained in this

form

Date Effective From

in adcordance with the

provisions of Article 18, the Parties hereby agree that the

Grant Agreement be varied as follows!

2. Words and expressions in this Grant Variation Notice shall have the meanings
given to them in the Grant Agreement. :

3. The G_raﬁt-Ag'reement, including any previous Grant Variation Notices, shall .
remain effective and unaltered except as amended by this Grant Variation

Notice,
Signed on behalf of the Authority Signed on behalf of the Recipient
Sighature Signature
Name Name
L [ ——
- Title - Title
[ [
Date Date

[

MM—‘_”W

41




ANNEX G - GRANT FUNDING LETTER

. Palice Straleny and Reform Unit

h 8% Floor Fry Building
. 2 Marsham Strees, Londan, SW1P 4DF.

020 7035 3019

- Home Ofﬁce C 'pccpaﬂnersenqu}ﬁes@homaofﬁce.gov.uk

Clalre Bali

Commissioning, Communities and Polfcy
Derbyshire County Council '
claIre.ball@derbyshire.gov.uk

16 August 2019

Bear Claire,

DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL. GRANT —
FINANQIAL YEAR 2019120 :

| am wiriting to_confirm the offer of & grant of up ta £67,106.00 to Derbyshire
County Councll as host authority in respect of the Derbyshire Police and Crime
Panel (PCP), ‘

Payment of this grant, 1o the agreed schedule in the atiached Grant Agreement,
* Is subjectto your accaplance of this offer and the standarg terms and conditions
of the Grant Agresment, : :

To allow public scrutiny of PCP spending, PCPs must publish, as a minimem
on their website, detalls of all their expenditure (or, where that is not possible,
*on the host alithority’s webslte). This will include detalls of all panel
allowances, ‘

if you wish to accept this offer of grant.funding, please sign and return to the
above emall address, one copy of the Grant Agreeiment, ensuring that youy
complete the Acceplance of Grant pages. Please ba aware thal no payments
will be released untl recelpt of the signad documentation,

Yours sIﬁcarely

.Lauren Diffey : ( .
Head of PCC Policy, Scrutiny and Accountability

Page 118

42



14

901 ASNOdSTY N

OLLSTND NOILYOIRIV1O — H X3NNV

Page 119°




APPENDIX 3

SLYLT wie [e1o).
O000EIN £8¢'y TLET oidoy
0OCOEIN TEET Buiraen
0000£3N (AR sUOdUNY /jU0D
0000&3N G681 yodsued),
0000E3IN LT¥Z9E uBwInIoey
1BYI0
260°ET
000204 €£7°0T ITHE ua
000z0at 620'2 86'82 M
000TOV1 LT 50°89 Hdd/vy
000T0aT 801°g €8°571T i
12101 wu.mm SINOoH
VBRI [auBd BUILD 33 92104 404 BNy
rom-ﬁow 2 ~-03- 108 'P¥ UOT2AZCSARIDOTN /ISAD #
ZLTEZ ZL EZ
0Z-geT GT ETT
=00 g8T'6% —00"S31'8%
08 21%
)

v

™y
P

i

i

U e

X

[\

@ T

Page 120



- 3ueld BYLJ0L OP OL PR

{senanosay aetodi

Page 121




Accrual for Police and Crime Panel Grant 2017/18

Staff hours

J Mce

Liz Wild (legal services)
Accountancy (RKA/PH Jast year)
iw

DR

JW

RS

Cther

Recruitment/training

Catering

Total ¢laim 2017/18

IR

~ e P e
lleosw

APPENDIX Y-

Hours Hrly rate Amount
70 115.83 £8,108.10 ,
40 115.83 24633200 17
2 68.05 £2,858.10 1 o401 (YT
110 28.98 £3,187.80 1 | pyys
420 34.11 £14.326.2ojz
98 34.11 £3,342.78 7
70 34.11 £2,387.70 J
Total £38,843.88
847.80
220.60
Total  £1,068.40
£39,912.28

Bt/ Plan/ommit

HE30AG0

Coat Cenkar/Group
Fenpon redpomeible

1 to

Repoxvting peried

Police and Crime Pap

Bichard Appleby

12 P03%

LY 1]

£47.80 847,80~

B i+ over/Ondésabssrpsion e

2203, 60 22¢, ga 2. G-
i,048,20 1,068,410 IO 4,068, 40—
. ]

Page 122




P it

To be returned fo the authority by 9" March 2018 to remain eligible for the payment

| SCHEDULE 4 ~ Outturn forecast

covering the second half of the financial year.

Verslon 1.6

ihcurred to date Forecast to 31 Total
March 2018

Administration e

costs £33,Q19 -a8 , - %’{)@,‘Cﬂ'&ﬁtﬁ
-Members :
expenses — — e
Translation cosis _

(if applicable) e - -

Tota! £z ana-8 ~ g acna-2

Page 123




APPENDIX Sa

o
on

o0

®

"OOE

oL

iT

oTE

s 3

ﬁmﬂﬂﬁw

poTad furazodsy
CRIATEEOdES T BORISg
A 30T

&

S Fmmmen et faow

00'68£°CE

00°005°s

00°656°ST

00'098'T
00°009°T
00067,

F Wnowy

0s
€e
€6
79

L[0T
F 93ey AlnoH

(1equimidas-judy) 61-8T07 JueiD [dued aw) pue 31jog

01T
€8y

0z

T4

0z

SINOH Jiels

|B10]

Aupniog

S@2IAIBS WaQ
Hd

M3

dr

Page 124



Page 125



APPENDIA Sb

WdEZ:9T 6T0T E0FT pofiews ov'esy .
0L 1T Buiied
04'0TZ Hodsye:s[ agng
0009 SUIo0Y JO a4Y
00700z uUBWNNITY

E_m_u 0} sasuadxs 810

—0LTTT _ LTI ] et -
0¥ TLgee . ~07-T1L8 28 o rom Tia'Es
—DLt0tE o _ _ 0L"01Z . o oTE
-porns | oo-ps . mn_ Dp

-ogroee - | bo-ooE

" potzad Brrazodsy
; mandﬂﬂoﬁmmi wERag
e gﬂtbxﬂuuﬂm,m asaD

2 /T rwmuren . Weg ITI) PUR SOTTOH

e sz zases’ T T T e e e
00725901 : . ‘ S (210}
00°0ce €g 01 $BIIAIRS WRQ
00'9%0T €6 cC Hd

100'957 %9 ¢ | M3
00°570°8 £0T S/ ar
F Junowy "F ayey Apnoy SInOY ye1g

(424BIN-19G0130) 6T-8T0Z JuBID [SURY DI puE 351{04

- Page 126



Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 To consider a report of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire on Proposed Precept for 2020/21
	POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 23 JANUARY 2020
	2. BACKGROUND & CONTEXT
	ATTACHMENTS
	APPENDIX A

	5(a) Proposed Precept 2020/21 - (Additional Information)
	Agenda Item 5 - Precept Paper additional info FV
	POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
	23 JANUARY 2020

	Copy of Precept annexes FV
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex C 
	Annex D
	Annex E


	6 Proposed Timetable of Meetings 2020/21
	7 Complaints Procedure
	8 Police and Crime Panel - Grant Funding



